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PERFORMANCE REPORT –
OVERVIEW
The purpose of this section is to provide an overview of the Scottish Prison Service, its purpose and
activities. This section also includes information on key risks and issues for the organisation as well
as a high level summary of performance in 2016-17.
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FOREWORD

I am delighted to bring forward the Scottish Prison Service’s
(SPS) Annual Report and Accounts for 2016-17.
This has been another busy and
productive year for SPS. In terms of
overall performance, 93% high-level,
corporate targets were met as well as
delivering 92% of our business plan
commitments. We had made good
progress on our strategic priorities and
the key highlights of our performance
is summarised below.
> Progressing the strategy for women in

custody and the further consolidation
of our strategy for young people
have been key priorities this year.
Identifying potential sites for the
Community Custody Units (CCUs) for
women has been advanced and the
design for the new national facility for
women at HMP & YOI Cornton Vale is
being developed. We also successfully
integrated 100 women to vacant
accommodation in HMP & YOI Polmont
in preparation for the redevelopment
of the HMP & YOI Cornton Vale for the
new national facility.
> Consolidating the Young People’s

Strategy has meant that significant
advancement has been made with
the development of quality indicators
and we have seen improvement in the
level of engagement of young people.
> Developing the new Community

Justice partnership arrangements
have been key and at a national
level we have contributed to the
development of the Community
Justice Outcomes, Performance
and Improvement (OPI) Framework
and supported the production of the
Community Justice Self-Assessment
Framework (led by the Care
Commission).
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> Introducing the Prison Officer

Professionalisation Programme
(POPP) which will lead to the long-term
development and up-skilling of the
role of the Prison Officer including the
introduction of a higher education
diploma as the benchmark for future
learning and qualification.
This year SPS continued its journey of
transformational and cultural change,
ensuring that we continued to make
our full contribution to the delivery
of the Justice Strategy for Scotland
and playing our part in delivery of
Scotland’s National Outcomes. It is
worth mentioning that in the past year
we developed and published our Value
Proposition which sets out how we see
the work and activity of the SPS sitting
within wider national strategies. The
Value Proposition is available on our
website at www.sps.gov.uk.
The SPS Throughcare Model has
continued to develop and grow with 42
Throughcare Support Officers (TSOs)
working across Scotland, providing
dedicated support for those sentenced
to short term sentences (less than 4
years) as they transition back to their
community. I am very proud of the
work being undertaken by the TSOs
which is contributing to the smooth
transition of those in our care into their
communities; and enabling access to
a range of support services as well
as assisting people to make changes
to their lives and behaviour. I am
optimistic that the work of the TSOs
will have a lasting impact on those who
leave our care and this will ultimately
contribute to improving the prospects
for those who have left our care.

In last year’s report, I highlighted the
changes which had been made to our
governance arrangements. I am happy
to report that these arrangements are
now firmly embedded and we now have
our first ever non-executive Chairman
of the SPS Advisory Board, Brigadier
Hugh Monro, who was appointed in
June 2016. I would like to take the
opportunity to thank him and his nonexecutive Director colleagues for the
tremendous contribution which they
have made to the work of the SPS over
the last 12 months. Their support and
advice have been invaluable and they
continue to provide help and assistance
to colleagues across the Service.
I am grateful to everyone across
the Scottish Prison Service for their
excellent contribution towards making
our prison environments both safe and
positive, where real transformational
change can take place.

Colin McConnell
Chief Executive
27 June 2017
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Colin McConnell		
Chief Executive

I AM VERY PROUD OF THE WORK BEING UNDERTAKEN
BY THE TSOs WHICH IS CONTRIBUTING TO THE
SMOOTH TRANSITION OF THOSE IN OUR CARE INTO
THEIR COMMUNITIES.”

   PERFORMANCE REPORT – FOREWORD

SCOTTISH PRISON SERVICE
ANNUAL REPORT & ACCOUNTS 2016-2017

PURPOSE AND ACTIVITIES

The SPS continues to deliver a range of operational services that
contribute to the strategic outcomes, objectives and policies of
the Scottish Government.
History
The SPS is an agency of the
Scottish Government and was first
established in April 1993. The SPS
Framework Document sets out the
policy and resources framework set
by Scottish Ministers within which
the SPS operates. As an Executive
Agency, the SPS is funded by the
Scottish Government. In line with
the Framework Document, the SPS
sets out its business objectives in the
three-year Corporate Plan for the
period 2014-17 and an Annual Delivery
Plan which is published in the Spring
of each year. The current Corporate
and Delivery Plans are driven by the
strategic priorities identified in the
SPS Organisational Review Unlocking
Potential – Transforming Lives which
was published in 2013.
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Our Principal Activities
The SPS is a public service-led agency
which is legally required to deliver
custodial and rehabilitation services
for those sent to it by the courts.
Appendix three details the average
number of individuals held in custody
during 2016‑17.
The SPS continues to deliver a range of
operational services that contribute to
the strategic outcomes, objectives and
policies of the Scottish Government.
Our principal objective is to contribute
to making ‘Scotland Safer by Protecting
the Public and Reducing Reoffending’.
The SPS aims to achieve this by
ensuring delivery of secure custody,
safe and ordered prisons, decent
standards of care, and opportunities
for those citizens in our care to develop
in a way that helps them reintegrate
into the community on release.

To support this objective, SPS agrees
a service framework with each public
sector prison and manages private
sector providers of prisons and
custodial services under contract
arrangements.
The SPS also manages, on behalf of
multi-agency justice partners, the
national contract for the provision of
court custody and prisoner escorting,
and routinely works and cooperates
with statutory and other partners to
deliver improved Justice Outcomes.
At 1 April 2016 there were 13 publicly
managed prisons, two privately
managed prisons (HMP Addiewell and
HMP Kilmarnock) and a provider of
Court Custody and Prisoner Escorting
Services. Appendix one shows the
location of the prisons.
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Vision and Mission of SPS
The SPS has a Vision of Helping to build
a safer Scotland – Unlocking Potential –
Transforming Lives.
The Mission of the SPS is: Providing
services to help to transform the
lives of the people in our care so they
can fulfil their potential and become
responsible citizens.
In delivering our Vision and Mission our
Operating Task is: Helping to protect
the public and reduce reoffending
through the delivery of safe and secure
custodial services that empower the
offender to take responsibility to fulfil
their potential.
We deliver this through:
Custody – Managing safe and secure
custodial environments;
Order – Providing stability and order
that helps offenders to transform
their lives;
Care – Supporting wellbeing and
treating with respect and humanity
all in our care; and
Opportunity – Providing opportunities
which develop the potential of our
staff, our partnerships and the people
in our care.

Our Commitment and Values
Our Vision and Mission provide a
driving ambition and clarity of direction
for our organisation. Our commitment
remains to:

> Openness – we work with others to

achieve the best outcomes;
> Courage – we have the courage to

care regardless of circumstances; and
> Humility – we cannot do this on our

> View ourselves as part of the ‘whole

own, we recognise we can learn from
others.

system’;
> Develop a person-centred,

Our Strategic Priorities
To deliver the Vision and Mission, SPS
has seven strategic priorities:

asset‑based approach to unlock the
potential of our people and those in
our care;

1. Embedding the New Vision;

> Encourage and support our staff and

those in our care to be all they can be;

2. Delivering effective and efficient
services;

> Together with partners strengthen

links into communities and support
reintegration on release; and

3. Developing a person-centred,
asset‑based approach;

> Professionalise and invest in SPS staff

as effective change agents.

4. Becoming a learning organisation;
5. Delivering a collaborative outcome
focus;

Our core values are the foundation
of how we behave and are central
to our organisation relating to our
commitment to respecting human
rights. We believe that the keys to
delivering our Mission are:

6. Promoting public confidence
in SPS; and
7. Investing in SPS people.

> Belief – we believe that people can

change;
> Respect – we have proper regard

for individuals, their needs and their
human rights;
> Integrity – we apply high ethical, moral

For the 2016-17 Annual Delivery
Plan these priorities have defined
outcomes against which performance
can be reviewed and reported on. This
Performance Framework, showing
the links to the Justice Outcomes
and National Outcomes, is shown in
Appendix eight.

and professional standards;
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Our Contribution to National
Outcomes
The SPS contributes to Scotland
Performs, the Strategic Objectives
of Safer and Stronger Communities,
and the National Outcomes through
deliverables identified within the
Corporate and Annual Delivery Plans.
These deliverables have been
developed under key themes in each
of the strategic priority outcomes.
This means that our ability to set
Key Performance Measures has
improved and will be developed
further to achieve a comprehensive
and robust Performance Framework
which captures both Operational
Performance Indicators (operational
results) and Corporate Performance
Measures (balanced scorecard
approach). The current structure is
shown in Appendix eight.
The National Performance Framework
and the agenda for public services
reform outlined in the Commission on
the Future Delivery of Public Services
underpin what we do. Success in
achieving our Vision will contribute
very directly to the following National
Outcomes:
PERFORMANCE REPORT – PURPOSE AND ACTIVITIES   

> We live our lives safe from crime,

disorder and danger;
> We have strong, resilient and

supportive communities where
people take responsibility for their
own actions and how they affect
others; and
> Our public services are high quality,

continually improving, efficient and
responsive to local people’s needs.
These National Outcomes are reflected
in the Strategy for Justice in Scotland.
We have a strong lead role to play in the
delivery of the Vision of this strategy
to contribute positively to a flourishing
Scotland, helping to create an inclusive
and respectful society in which all
people and communities live in safety
and security. A society where individual
and collective rights are supported and
disputes are resolved fairly and swiftly.
Value Proposition
In the course of the 2016-17 the SPS
published its ‘Value Proposition’
which outlines the contribution which
the organisation is making to the
realisation of the Justice Strategy for

Scotland. The document outlines our
commitment to working with partners
and other agencies to deliver better,
more positive, outcomes for those in
our care and thereby contribute to a
more socially just and safer Scotland.
The Value Proposition can be accessed
on our website at www.sps.gov.uk
Stakeholder Engagement
We have engaged and will continue
to engage with stakeholders locally,
nationally and internationally, and work
closely with a wide range of bodies to
help shape our services.
Our partners in 2016-17 include:
> Community Justice Authorities
> Community Planning Partnerships
> Education Scotland
> Employers
> Local Authorities
> NHS
> Police Scotland
> Scottish Government
> Skills Development Scotland
> Third Sector
> Universities
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KEY RISKS AND ISSUES
SPS believes that the achievement of
corporate objectives relies upon the
taking of appropriate risks as long as
they are managed effectively.

Risks are regularly reviewed
throughout the SPS, in combination
with the assessment and
implementation of appropriate and
targeted controls and mitigations.

Risk

The following risks and challenges are
considered to be the key items which
could impact on the successful
delivery of our corporate objectives.

How we manage it

Failure of a key strategic supplier/provider to deliver
key services/outputs

> Programme of SPS business improvements, where appropriate,
to aid service delivery
> Testing of bespoke contingency plans, relevant to key contract
delivery
> Periodic review of supplier/providers deemed to be of concern
> In-depth contract scrutiny and review
> External legal advice as required

Inability to effectively contribute to the Strategy for
Women in Custody

> Dedicated joint agency team
> In-depth programme planning and critical path identification
> Programme of communications with stakeholders and
communities at appropriate stages in project lifecycle
> Robust governance arrangements

Failure of IT to support the needs of the business

> Prioritised focus on key deliverables and robust project
governance
> Identification and recruitment into key roles
> IT health check programme
> Strengthening of controls and oversight
> Improved vetting and quality checks
> Detailed focus on cyber security
> Implementation of Digital Strategy

Meeting the social care requirements of prisoners
with high care needs

> Social care needs assessments
> Development of multi-disciplinary strategy for management of
people with high social care needs
> Creation of tracking tool to record existing response to social
care needs across funding and facilities

Appropriate accommodation and management of
increasingly complex prison populations

> Review and rationalisation of existing estate
> Contingency planning in relation to capacity challenges
> Review and appraisal of population management options and
principles
> Development of joint Scottish Government and SPS strategy on
population management
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PERFORMANCE SUMMARY
How do we manage and monitor performance?
We measure our performance against seven Strategic Priorities and their underpinning outcomes developed in our
Organisational Review and set out in the Corporate Plan 2014-17.
Strategic
Priorities:

Outcome:

Embedding the vision
Investing in
SPS People

Delivering
Developing a
effective and
collaborative
efficient services outcome focus

Our people are
motivated and
highly skilled, and
our HR practices
support the
delivery of a
progressive
prison service.

Our governance
approach
accords with
the principles
published by
CIPFA (Scotland).

We manage performance by producing
an Annual Delivery Plan (ADP). This
sets out the actions we will take within
the year to implement the Corporate
Plan. The ADP 2016-17 contained 40
Corporate Deliverables. The Corporate
Deliverables describe the high level
objectives that we set out to achieve in
2016-17 in order to meet our strategic
priorities. Six of these were designated
as ‘Priority Deliverables’:
> Taking forward the strategy for

women in our care and consolidating
the young people’s strategy;
> Developing effective community

justice interfaces;
> Delivering the Shaping our Future

project;
> Taking forward critical elements of

our people strategy;
> Taking forward priority developments

within the purposeful activity
strategy;
> Managing the prison population

and reconfiguring the prison estate
to meet changes in the operating
environment.
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Our collaboration
with partners
enables the
co-production
of services for
service users.

Developing a
person-centred,
asset-based
approach

Becoming
a learning
organisation

Promoting public
confidence in SPS

Service users
believe they are
empowered to
build on their
assets and have
ambition for their
futures.

Our
performance
is shaped by
research and
reflective
practice.

Our ambitions
for the lives of
those in our care
are understood
by the public and
stakeholders.

The ADP is supported in each
establishment or functional area by
Area/Establishment Business Plans.
Each of these contains a set of Area/
Business Plan Deliverables detailing the
actions to be delivered at local level in
support of our Strategic Priorities.
Detailed quarterly and annual
performance reports are presented
to our Executive Management
Group (EMG) and Advisory Board
(AB). Additionally an annual report is
submitted to our Risk Management
and Audit Committee (RMAC). This is
the final year of the 2014-17 Corporate
Plan and its associated performance
framework.
During the year we undertook the
development of our new Corporate
Plan 2017-20. Feedback received during
the process of developing the Plan
suggested that we should move towards
a more outcome focused approach to
performance management.

In recognition of this and in line with
best practice in high performing public
bodies we undertook a mid-point
review of all Corporate and Business
Plan Deliverables at the end of quarter
two. This enabled us to respond to
changes in the strategic and operational
environments and the consequent
impacts on our delivery. It led to a
significant reduction in the overall
number of Deliverables and supported
the transition towards a more outcome
focused approach to corporate planning
and performance reporting.
We also report annually on a
set of operational performance
indicators and these complement
our performance management
arrangements. These are detailed
in appendix eight and cover a range
of areas of parliamentary and public
interest. In the context of our new
Corporate Plan we will review these
for future years to ensure consistency
with the Plan and its performance
framework.
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Summary of Performance
A high level of performance was
maintained in 2016-17. We delivered 37
out of 40 Corporate deliverables and
535 of the 582 (92%) area and business
plan deliverables that remained after
the mid-point review. However, the
numbers do not tell the whole story.
The Performance Analysis section
demonstrates that we have made
significant and substantial progress
towards the transformational and
cultural change required to ensure that
we make a full contribution to the vision
set out in the Justice Strategy for
Scotland and play our part in achieving
National Outcomes.
In 2016-17 SPS demonstrated high
levels of performance. Some of our
key performance highlights are set
out below:
> Taking forward the strategy for

women in our care and consolidating
the young people’s strategy
Good progress was made in the
concept design of the Women’s
National Facility and on potential
locations for Community Custody
Units. Consolidation of the Young
People’s Strategy was effected
through locally targeted action plans;

> Developing effective community

justice interfaces
We developed our systems and
processes for engaging with new
Community Justice partnership
arrangements and engaged
effectively with partners to agree
future arrangements in support of
local strategic planning;

> Delivering the Shaping our Future

project
Our Shaping Our Future proposals
were submitted to the Cabinet
Secretary in December 2016. These
were positively received and this
comprehensive work will be taken
forward through our POPP;

> Taking forward critical elements of

our People Strategy
We agreed our Leadership Strategy
and good progress was made on the
development of a Workforce Plan;

> Taking forward priority

developments within the purposeful
activity strategy
The framework for Purposeful
Activity was approved and this
introduces a national approach.
Linked to this, a model of delivery for
Case Management was developed
and approved for testing.

> The Carbon Management Strategy

had not been formally signed off
by the end of the reporting year.
However the programme set out in
the Strategy is being implemented
and SPS is on track to meet the 10%
carbon emission reduction target by
2020-21.
> Although work commenced to

develop a strategic response in
collaboration with stakeholders to the
Scottish Government’s commitment
to a smoke free Scotland (and the
implications for prisons) this has
been continued into 2017-18 to take
account of resourcing considerations.
> Due to the rescheduling of some

training sessions the implementation
of the action plan resulting from
policy changes for the management
of substance misuse in prisons will be
completed in 2017-18.

> Managing the prison population

and reconfiguring the prison estate
to meet changes in the operating
environment
We agreed a programme of
development work with the Scottish
Government to consider the
challenges faced in managing our
population.

Although there has been some
slippage relating to three Corporate
Deliverables this is not considered to
be critical and ongoing work has been
incorporated into our programme of
work for 2017-18.
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Financial Performance
Financial performance is monitored throughout the year and reported to the Advisory Board and Risk Monitoring Advisory
Committee on a routine basis. As an Executive Agency of the Scottish Government, SPS’s expenditure forms a section
within the Scottish Government Justice Portfolio and the results will be recorded in the Scottish Government Consolidated
Accounts for 2016-17.
The Scottish Parliament approves funds to the Scottish Government and related bodies at the start of the year and
variations to these via the Autumn Budget Revision (ABR) in October and a Spring Budget Revision (SBR) in January. The
Scottish Parliament approved a budget for SPS of £354,148k, details of which are contained in the Budget (Scotland) Bill
2016-17 Supporting Document.
During 2016-17, SPS were asked to identify and deliver savings to support other justice priorities. Details of the ABR and SBR
budget revisions made by SPS can be found at www.gov.scot/Topics/Government/Finance/18127/Documents.
As part of the SBR process SPS are required to request budget cover for Annually Managed Expenditure (AME)1 to cover
potential increases of provisions and impairment charges. SPS identified that tender price indices (TPIs), which underpin the
indexation and valuation of the SPS estate, were continuing to increase which would result in impairment reversals2. For this
reason, a net credit AME budget of £5,000k was requested, including provisions.
A comparison of the SPS final Outturn with the SBR for 2016-17 is detailed below. The table does not include notional
charges of £103k (Note 18 in the Notes to the Accounts).
Actual
Outturn

Revised
Budget

Over/
(Underspend)

£000

£000

£000

271,621

272,393

(772)

Total Outside DEL Expenditure 4

70,406

70,862

(456)

Total Annually Managed Expenditure (AME)

(8,692)

(5,000)

(3,692)

333,335

338,255

(4,920)

Total Departmental Expenditure Limit (DEL)

3

Total Expenditure

Total expenditure for the year was £333,335k against the Spring Budget position (SBR) of £338,255k. AME impairment
reversals were £4,410k over the estimated position due to the indices used to form the estimate being higher than
anticipated at SBR.
More detail on the financial performance for 2016-17 can be found in the Performance Analysis on pages 17-18. The financial
statements and notes to the accounts can be found on pages 42-69.

1 AME budgets are used to manage expenditure which is demand led or exceptionally volatile in a way that could not be controlled and where the expenditure is
so large that it could not be absorbed in DEL.
2 An impairment reversal eliminates any losses charged to the SOCNE in prior years as a result of market variations.
3 DEL budget limits are set in the Spending Review.
4 Outside DEL expenditure includes costs associated with PPP/PFI contracts for HMP Addiewell and HMP Kilmarnock and the Court Custody and Prisoner
Escort Service Contract.
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PERFORMANCE REPORT –
PERFORMANCE ANALYSIS
The purpose of this section is to provide a detailed analysis of the
development and performance of the organisation in 2016-17.
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PERFORMANCE ANALYSIS

How well did we perform in 2016-17
This analysis focuses on our performance in relation to our
Corporate Deliverables with a closer look at our Priority
Deliverables. In 2016-17 SPS demonstrated high levels of
performance completing 37 out of our 40 Corporate Deliverables.
This year, we have reported on how our
deliverables have helped us achieve our
Strategic priorities.
STRATEGIC PRIORITY:
INVESTING IN SPS PEOPLE
Our people are highly skilled, and our
HR practices support the delivery of
a progressive prison service.
PRIORITY DELIVERABLE:
DELIVERING THE SHAPING OUR
FUTURE PROJECT
We submitted our Shaping Our
Future proposals to the Cabinet
Secretary in December 2016. At
the same time we published our
Value Proposition which set out our
vision for unlocking potential and
transforming the lives of those in
our care. Our staff are recognised as
a key agents of change in the lives
of those in our care and the Value
Proposition set out ambitious plans
for professionalising the prison
officer role and equipping front line
staff with the skills necessary to
effect positive change.
Our proposals were positively
received by the Minister who gave his
assent to SPS and the Prison Officer’s
Association, Scotland (POA(S)) to
engage in continuing dialogue on
the development of a new operating
structure. Work will be taken forward
through our POPP.
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PRIORITY DELIVERABLE:
TAKING FORWARD CRITICAL
ELEMENTS OF OUR PEOPLE
STRATEGY
During 2016 our Leadership Strategy
was agreed by our EMG and endorsed
by the Trade Union Side (TUS). The
Strategy is aligned to the Governor
in Charge (GiC) ‘masterclass’
programme and ‘masterclass’
sessions have been delivered by
external experts on Leadership,
Emotional Intelligence and
Resilience, Governance and Coaching
approaches to Leadership.
Sixty operational Unit Managers have
completed two-day, preparatory
training course in order to support
their front line managers.
Following on from the Staff Survey,
all Areas and Establishments
identified their top priorities for
action under the ‘Our Five’ framework
which sets out the improvement
actions being undertaken in each
Area or Establishment in response to
the survey results.
A range of HR policies were reviewed
within the context of the People
Strategy. HR policies provide
an important and fundamental
framework for the management of all
employment related issues and it is
intended that every HR policy will be
reviewed at least every three years.
They ensure consistency of approach
and fairness.

Work on the development of a
Workforce Plan progressed well. A
robust Workforce Plan supports the
SPS in its deployment of staff and
provides an underpinning structure
for ensuring the SPS has the right
people, in the right place, with the
right skills, at the right time. It also
supports SPS processes for talent
management and succession
planning.
Consideration of Civil Service People
Survey actions is now integrated into
the SPS Business Planning Cycle. By
mainstreaming this as an integral
part of the normal business for SPS
managers, People Survey actions will
be measured in Quarterly Business
Reviews (QBRs) and managers’
Personal Performance Management
System (PPMS) assessments.
Linked to the Shaping Our Future
project, work was undertaken on
the development of a professional
qualification for prison officers.
This included consideration of the
learning agreement that would be
made between SPS and relevant
officers, the application process, fee
considerations, study leave, and other
associated issues. This area of work will
be continued in 2017-18 as part of the
POPP.
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WE IMPLEMENTED THE FINDINGS OF OUR
GOVERNANCE REVIEW AND FOLLOWING
ON FROM THE RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE
REPORT BY AUDIT SCOTLAND... ”

During the year the SPS College
delivered a comprehensive range of
learning and development opportunities
across staff groups. These included:
> In 2016-17 the revised training

product Desistance in Practice, aimed
at more experienced Prison Officers,
was delivered to 57 staff at Edinburgh
and Inverness, and an evaluation was
completed. A further 65 staff have
been trained since the pilots, making
the total number of staff trained in
2016-17 122, and the total trained in
desistance since 2014 is 773.
> A Therapeutic Crisis Intervention pack,

entitled ‘The Care, Support and Safe
Management of Young People in Crisis’
has been developed by SPS College
at the request of the Youth Strategy
group and forms part of the training
plan for 2017 onwards.
> Revised Women in Custody training

commenced at Polmont, as part of
the up skilling of existing staff and
those who joined from Cornton Vale
following the transfer of women
prisoners.
STRATEGIC PRIORITY:
DELIVERING EFFECTIVE AND
EFFICIENT SERVICES
Our governance approach accords
with the principles published by
CIPFA (Scotland).

Although there was no priority
deliverable within this area for 2016-17,
SPS made significant progress ensuring
that we continue to deliver effective
and efficient services to those in our
custody and their families; to staff and
our partners.

and Diversity have been set in the new
Equality Outcomes 2017-20 for SPS
which were developed in parallel with
the development of the SPS Corporate
Plan 2017-20 to ensure integration of
equality, diversity and human rights
issues within the Plan.

Within HQ, we developed SPS 2020.
This is our Corporate Plan for 2017-20.
In doing so we undertook an extensive
programme of engagement with
staff, those in our care and external
stakeholders; and undertook wide
public consultation. The Plan identifies
Strategic Themes and Outcomes and
sets out how we will continue with the
journey of transformational change
initiated in our Organisational Review
over the next three years. It emphasises
our connectedness with the wider
Justice policy, legislative and operational
contexts as an Executive Agency of the
Scottish Government. This plan is due for
publication in Spring 2017.

We implemented the findings of our
Governance review and following
on from the recommendations of
the report by Audit Scotland, the
organisation published remits and
Terms of Reference for the EMG, SPS
Advisory Board and the RMAC. One of
the main changes, as a result of this, is
that from May 2016 Chairperson of the
Advisory Board has been held by one of
the Non-executive Directors on behalf
of the Chief Executive.

SPS has delivered the work it set out to
in the 2013-2017 Equality Outcomes. In
a survey completed by staff and external
organisations, more respondents felt
that SPS had made progress in relation
to prisoner focused outcomes than the
staff focused outcomes. To address
this, staff-specific equality outcomes on
workforce diversity, flexible working, fair
treatment and knowledge of Equality

The Corporate Change Unit has
continued to embed a corporate
approach to portfolio, programme
and project governance to ensure key
priorities are delivered successfully,
effectively and timeously. They have
also supported this delivery and
provided regular, timely and quality
reporting on the Change Portfolio to
the EMG, SPS Advisory Board and the
RMAC.
From an Estates perspective, we
developed our Carbon Management
Strategy 2015-16 – 2020-21 and
are on track for meeting the 10%
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carbon emission reduction target by
2020-21. The Scottish Government
has introduced mandatory climate
change reporting requirements for all
public sector ‘major players’. This is
intended to help public bodies in terms
of compliance; encourage continuous
improvement; and develop a standard
system to be used across the public
sector. Information submitted through
this process is collated and assessed
centrally, with a Climate Change Public
Sector Report produced annually.
These new standardised arrangements
supersede SPS reporting arrangements.
A separate report covering 2016-17
will be published on the SPS website in
Winter 2017.
In terms of Risk Management, the
Corporate Risk Strategy has been
embedded. A programme of events
took place throughout the year to
promote awareness and ensure staff
and managers understand what is
expected of them. This strategy is
operating in conjunction with the Annual
Audit and Assurance Plan which was
completed over the course of 2016-17.
We have developed a SPS Integrity
Model looking at issues around fraud,
corruption and cyber security. This
has included undertaking a review
of the provision of Cyber Security
readiness through assessment of
security arrangements and contingency
planning. Internally, development and
consultation has been carried out and
this has now been distributed for wider
external consultation.
In terms of Information Technology
and Infrastructure, this year saw SPS
work in partnership with the Scottish
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Government in taking forward its Digital
Transformation agenda. A draft Digital
Strategy for SPS was developed and
is with the Scottish Government’s
Digital Transformation Service for
consideration.
Building on the success of utilising
video conferencing for family virtual
visits, agents visits and limited
court appearances, SPS developed
and implemented a policy for video
conferencing. The aim is to maximise
opportunities where the technology can
be used to deliver the most effective
and efficient service to those in custody,
our staff and partners.
Throughout the year, SPS continued
to ensure compliance with ever
changing legislative requirements. Most
significantly, this included ensuring
continued delivery of the procurement
activity following the publication of the
revised EU directive and Procurement
Reform (Scotland) Act, both of which
went live during 2016-17.
In supporting Victims of crime, we
reviewed our Standards of Service
relating to the Victims’ Rights (Scotland)
Regulations 2015 in partnership with
victims’ organisations. This was to
support a planned update in 201718. We also published a report on
compliance which can be found on our
website.
STRATEGIC PRIORITY:
DEVELOPING A COLLABORATIVE
OUTCOME FOCUS
Our collaboration with partners
enables the co-production of
services for service users.

PRIORITY DELIVERABLE:
DEVELOPING EFFECTIVE
COMMUNITY JUSTICE INTERFACES
We developed our arrangements
for engaging with new Community
Justice partnership arrangements
during the shadow year identifying
responsibilities for Governors and
other senior staff to ensure that
as a national statutory partner
we engaged constructively and
consistently with local partnerships.
At a national level we contributed to
the development of the Community
Justice Outcomes, Performance
and Improvement (OPI) Framework
and supported the development
of the Community Justice SelfAssessment Framework (led by the
Care Commission).
We took an active part in the
Community Justice Steering Group
to help support and shape the
development of new Community
Justice arrangements.
SPS has contributed actively to
the national policy development
of Community Justice throughout
the transition period. This has been
done through strategic attendance
and SPS contributions at National
Implementation and Programme
boards.
SPS has also developed the ‘place
leadership’ role for Governors and
other senior managers for all places/
partnership areas in Scotland to
ensure the consistency of our
contribution to each area.
SPS has engaged effectively with
Community Justice Partners to agree
future arrangements in support
of local improvement planning.
This included data improvement,
SPS leadership arrangements and
the sharing of data relevant to
Community Justice Reform.
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STRATEGIC PRIORITY:
DEVELOPING A PERSON-CENTRED,
ASSET-BASED APPROACH
Service users believe they are
empowered to build on their assets
and have ambition for their futures.
PRIORITY DELIVERABLE:
TAKING FORWARD THE STRATEGY
FOR WOMEN IN OUR CARE AND
CONSOLIDATING THE YOUNG
PEOPLE’S STRATEGY
Significant progress has been made
in the concept design of the Women’s
National Facility. The facility will be
designed to assist in meeting the
risks and needs of women whilst
supporting them in a therapeutic and
trauma informed environment.
Information has been gathered on
potential locations for Community
Custody Units and collaborative
work is in progress with a number of
local authorities to identify specific
sites for consideration and work is
continuing to ensure the consistency
of delivery of the strategy.

PRIORITY DELIVERABLE:
MANAGING THE PRISON
POPULATION AND RECONFIGURING
THE PRISON ESTATE TO MEET
CHANGES IN THE OPERATING
ENVIRONMENT
We agreed a programme of
development work with the Scottish
Government to consider the
challenges faced in managing our
population in order to agree a shared
strategic position and approach. A
submission was made to the Cabinet
Secretary highlighting shared
population management challenges
and advising on possible next steps.
During the course of the year
proposals were brought forward
for building a replacement for HMP
Inverness on a site outside the city
centre. An application for Planning
Permission was submitted in May
for the development of a modern
prison which will provide suitable
accommodation for people in
custody from the Highlands and
Islands – keeping them closer to their
families and their communities.

PRIORITY DELIVERABLE:
TAKING FORWARD PRIORITY
DEVELOPMENTS WITHIN THE
PURPOSEFUL ACTIVITY STRATEGY
Following consultation the proposed
Purposeful Activity Framework has
been approved. The Framework
introduces a national delivery
model which will form the basis for
future delivery and improvements
and seeks to drive rehabilitation
activities to be at the core of our
business. A baseline was established
for Purposeful Activity delivery
and a Dashboard recording
system has been developed and
is currently being piloted in three
establishments. The new Contract
for Learning and Support services
has been awarded to Fife College,
this contract will commence in
August 2017 at which time individual
establishment Annual Learning Plans
will go live.

A new plan for the consolidating of
the Young People’s Strategy has been
developed around the areas agreed
with monitoring arrangements
in place with the development of
quality indicators moving forward
significantly over the course of the
year and we are seeing improved
levels of engagement.
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As well as the three priority deliverables
outlined above, SPS has successfully
delivered a number of other projects
within 2016-17 that aim to develop a
person centred way of working and build
on the assets of those in our care.

with key partners, with the Family
Strategy launched at an event in May
2017. A template for Family Strategy
Development Plans was developed and
will facilitate the implementation of the
national strategy at a local level.

In December 2016 operational
responsibility for the Parole Unit
transferred from the Scottish
Government to SPS. The Unit has been
successfully integrated into SPS and
oversees casework related to parole and
recalls to custody, and is responsible
for advising Scottish Ministers on policy
and procedure governing the release
of prisoners. The Unit is also directly
responsible for setting the release
licence conditions for prisoners whose
sentences fall between six months
and four years and who have been
sentenced for a sexual offence. We
also implemented the MAPPA (Multi
Agency Public Protection Arrangements)
extension in full for Category three
individuals in our care.

During the course of the year we
worked on the development of systems
to help us capture and understand
user experiences. An analysis of this
information is now being carried out in
order to better understand the breadth
of work being carried out across the
organisation and ensure a consistency
of approach. A piece of dedicated
research was added into the research
programme and was commissioned in
support of this.

SPS made progress in the field of
Violence Against Women with the
introduction of revised non-contact
guidelines; procedures for sharing
and enforcement of criminal nonharassment orders; conclusion of an
agreement with the Scottish Courts and
Tribunals Service to monitor special bail
conditions; introduction of additional
electronic monitoring to assist people
to comply with licence conditions and
improved partnership working with
statutory and voluntary sector partners.
Maintaining family links whilst in custody
is a priority for SPS and this year we
developed our Families Strategy and
Corporate Parenting Policy. These
policies were developed in collaboration
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Throughcare continues to be a
success for SPS and the introduction
of operational guidance and local
governance structures has seen the
Throughcare Model continue to develop
and grow throughout the year. An
evaluation of the SPS Throughcare
model has also been completed.
Furthermore, the SPS and Third Sector
Strategic Engagement Framework was
launched at a knowledge exchange
event between Throughcare Support
Officers and Third Sector agencies and
mentors, ensuring that we all provide
the best possible support to those
returning to their communities.
Establishments have developed
wide ranging set of initiatives with
community partners aimed at
developing citizenship and social
integration and a baseline paper was
produced to help us improve our
knowledge on social capital outcomes.
Building on the Better Health, Better
Lives national framework for improving

the health of Scotland’s prisoners, a
Health and Wellbeing Peer Strategy
Framework was completed. In addition,
a draft Bereavement Strategy has
been completed and consultation will
be undertaken. Three work streams
will be identified to take forward
Operational Protocols; developing
training and resources and making
recommendations about interventions.
STRATEGIC PRIORITY:
BECOMING A LEARNING
ORGANISATION
Our performance is shaped by
research and reflective practice.
We delivered our 2016-17 programme
of research. A key addition to our
programme was the undertaking of a
Strategic Assessment which informed
and provided underpinning evidence to
our Corporate Plan. We also undertook
high level policy analysis on the impact
of deficit reduction on prisons.
In June 2016 we held an international
symposium on “Rethinking Community,
Custody and Citizenship for ‘21st
Century Scotland.’ This built on the
international symposium which took
place in 2015 to consider new ways of
working with women in custody. SPS
has been working with experts from
jurisdictions across the world to ensure
that we instil best practice across our
custodial estate.
In the course of the year we hosted
a number of visits by prison service
professionals and academics from
across the globe who came to examine
our activities and to provide expert
input to the development of ongoing
work across the prison estate.
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STRATEGIC PRIORITY:
PROMOTING PUBLIC
CONFIDENCE IN SPS
Our ambitions for the lives of those in
our care are understood by the public
and stakeholders.
During the reporting year SPS worked
with the media and other agencies to
promote a greater understanding and
awareness of the work of the SPS and
how we contribute to making Scotland
safer.
Highlights of the year included an
eight part documentary series on Sky
television, providing insight into the first
and last 24 hours individuals spend in
custody.
Another significant initiative in this
year has been the development and

publication of our Value Proposition
outlining the contribution which the
service makes to the broader justice
agenda in Scotland.

stakeholders and colleagues over the
next few years to turn our ambitious
proposals into reality in support of the
Strategy for Justice in Scotland.

Staff from SPS undertook a range of
speaking engagements across Scotland
to ensure our Vision reached a variety of
different audiences.

Our vision and mission are better
understood by our partners through our
collaborative approach to partnership
as part of our contribution to new
Community Justice Arrangements.

STRATEGIC PRIORITY:
EMBEDDING THE VISION
During 2016-17 we took major strides
in implementing the journey of
transformational change expressed in
our organisational review and laid down
firm foundations for the future.
Our proposals for professionalising the
prison officer role and developing a new
operating model are now in the public
domain and we will work together with

Financial Performance & Results
for the Year
Net expenditure for the year
The Statement of Comprehensive Net
Expenditure (SOCNE) for the year is
shown on page 42.
SPS has reported net expenditure
for the year of £331,038k (2015-16
£323,687k).

The following table shows the reconciliation between the actual outturn shown on page 10 and the net operating costs reported in
the SOCNE. The reconciliation takes account of non-cash charges and HM Treasury Consolidated Budgeting Guidance.
£000
Total expenditure
Add Notional charges (note 18)

333,335
103
333,438

Less capital additions (note 5 & 6)
Net expenditure for the year (SOCNE)

(2,400)
331,038
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Significant movements
a) Staff costs
There is an overall increase in
staff costs in 2016-17 compared
to 2015‑16 (Remuneration &
Staff Report page 34). Included
in the Wages and Salaries figure
is a payment of £3,696k which
relates to a payment of £1,000 to
operational staff in pay ranges C, D
and E. These payments were made
to prison officers and operational
first line managers in recognition
of their continued engagement to
deliver the future operating model
for SPS. These payments attracted
Employers’ National Insurance
contributions.
Statement of Financial Position
The Statement of Financial Position
is on page 43. The most significant
movements on the statement of
financial position from the prior year are:
a) Changes in property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets
During the year the SPS had
additions of property, plant and
equipment, and intangible assets at
a cost of £2,400k (2015-16 £4,026k).
Property, plant and equipment has
decreased in value by £23,281k
in the financial year. This is largely
attributable to the full valuation of
the specialised properties that was
carried out in the year. A combination
of a reduction of the useful economic
life and location factors of all prison
locations were the main factors
affecting the valuation.

b) Provisions for liabilities and
charges
The accounting policy for provisions
and contingent liabilities is included
in note 1 in the Notes to the
Accounts and the sums provided for
are detailed in note 13 in the Notes
to the Accounts. These include
estimates of potential prisoner
compensation and related costs
where the cumulative provision as at
31 March 2017 is £2,723k (31 March
2016 £3,014k).
Also included are amounts payable
to former employees for loss of
earnings under the Civil Service
Injury Benefit Scheme where the
provision as at 31 March 2017 is
£10,678k (31 March 2016 £9,008k).
A provision for demolition works on
the site of HMP & YOI Cornton Vale
associated with the development
of the Women’s National Facility is
also included. The estimate as at
31 March 2017 is £1,713k (31 March
2016 £185k).
c) Trade and other payables
Included within payables is an
amount of £93,444k (2015-16
£97,459k) representing the imputed
finance lease5 for properties at HMP
Addiewell and HMP Kilmarnock
and for vehicles used in the Court
Custody and Prisoner Escort
Contract.

5 Imputed finance lease represents the liability for the capital value of the PPP/PFI contracts.
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Payment of Creditors
SPS’s policy is to pay all invoices, not
in dispute, in 30 days or the agreed
contractual terms if otherwise specified.
SPS aims to pay 100% of invoices,
including disputed invoices once the
dispute has been settled, on time in
these terms.
During the year ended 31 March 2017
SPS paid 99.7% (2015-16 99.9%) of all
invoices received within the terms of its
payment policy.
SPS has sought to achieve the Scottish
Government’s aspiration to pay
suppliers within 10 days. Payment
performance on this basis was 94.5%
(2015-16 94.1%).

Colin McConnell
Chief Executive
27 June 2017
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ACCOUNTABILITY REPORT –
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The purpose of this section is to explain the composition and organisation of
SPS’s governance structures and how they support the achievement of our objectives.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Chief Executive establishes the strategic direction of SPS
in conjunction with the Scottish Government; ensures public
accountability; assures probity/integrity; allocates resources
and monitors performance; reviews and manages risks facing
the SPS; and develops capability and performance while
ensuring sound corporate governance.
Appointment of the Chief Executive
The Chief Executive was appointed
by the Permanent Secretary of
the Scottish Government who is
empowered to make any changes to the
appointment. The Permanent Secretary
appointed Colin McConnell as Chief
Executive on 28 May 2012.
Board Members
The Chief Executive chairs an internal
Board which, in 2016-17, comprised
five Executive Directors and four
independent Non-Executive Directors
(appointed by Scottish Ministers for
their expertise) who collectively act in
an advisory capacity. The SPS Board’s
role is to support the Chief Executive in
providing leadership and in directing and
controlling the organisation in the public
interest.
The Chief Executive establishes the
strategic direction of SPS in conjunction
with the Scottish Government; ensures
public accountability; assures probity/
integrity; allocates resources and
monitors performance; reviews and
manages risks facing the SPS; and
develops capability and performance
while ensuring sound corporate
governance.
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SPS operates a three directorate
model; Operations, Strategy and
Innovation and Corporate Services.
During 2016‑17, Eric Murch became
the Director of Corporate Change, a
function under the Office of the Chief
Executive.

Information Security
The SPS takes information security very
seriously. Information security is the
responsibility of the Senior Information
Risk Owner at Board level and is
governed by an Information Governance
Forum which meets every two months.

In the financial year 2016-17, the Board
met six times. Minutes of the SPS
Board meetings are published on the
SPS website http://www.sps.gov.uk/
Corporate/Publications/Publications.
aspx.

There is an Information Security Unit
based in Headquarters and a network
of trained Information Security Officers
throughout the SPS. Each Information
Security Officer holds regular meetings
with their local management to discuss
information security and to prepare an
action plan for their area.

A Register of Interests of Advisory Board
Members is held by SPS and is reviewed
twice a year. The register is published on
our website www.sps.gov.uk.
The RMAC supports the Chief
Executive and the Board by advising
on the effectiveness of SPS corporate
governance arrangements including
risk management, performance
management, systems of internal
control and assurance arrangements.
The committee comprises two
Non-Executive Directors and two
independent members, John Graham
and Gavin Scott. The committee met on
five occasions during 2016-17 and was
chaired by John Graham.

Robust information security policies
are in place and staff are made aware
of these policies through leaflets and
presentations. All staff undertake a
compulsory Cabinet Office e-learning
course on protecting information.
An internal process for reporting and
investigating information security
and personal data related incidents
is in place. During 2016-17, the SPS
did not report any personal data
related incidents to the Information
Commissioner.
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Chief Executive
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Catherine Topley		
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Director of Operational Delivery
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Interim Director of
Operational Support Services
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Non-Executive Director
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Non-Executive Director
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Non-Executive Director
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Non-Executive Director
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Appointed Auditors
The accounts are audited by our
auditors appointed by the Auditor
General for Scotland. Under section 21
of the Public Finance and Accountability
(Scotland) Act 2000, the Auditor General
has determined that Scott Moncrieff
will be the appointed auditor for SPS for
the financial years 2016-17 to 2020-21.
Scott Moncrieff carried out the audit
of SPS’s accounts for the financial year
ending 31 March 2017. Scott Moncrieff
determined that the notional fee for
this service was £103,190 (2015-16
£96,390).

ACCOUNTABILITY REPORT – DIRECTORS’ REPORT   

23

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTABLE OFFICER’S RESPONSIBILITIES
Under section 19(4) of the Public
Finance and Accountability (Scotland)
Act 2000 the Scottish Ministers have
directed the SPS to prepare a statement
of accounts for each financial year in
the form and, on the basis, set out in
the Accounts Direction on page 70. The
accounts are prepared on an accrual
basis and must give a true and fair view
of the SPS’s state of affairs at the yearend and of its income and expenditure,
changes in taxpayers’ equity and cash
flows for the financial year.
In preparing the accounts, the
Accountable Officer is required to
comply with the requirements of the
Government Financial Reporting Manual
and in particular to:
> observe the Accounts Direction issued

by the Scottish Ministers, including
the relevant accounting and disclosure
requirements, and apply suitable
accounting policies on a consistent
basis;

> make judgements and estimates on a

reasonable basis;
> state whether applicable accounting

standards as set out in the
Government Financial Reporting
Manual have been followed, and
disclose and explain any material
departures in the accounts; and
> prepare the accounts on a going

concern basis.
The Principal Accountable Officer of
the Scottish Government appointed
the Chief Executive of the SPS as the
Accountable Officer. As Accountable
Officer, the Chief Executive is
responsible to the Scottish Ministers.
The responsibilities of an Accountable
Officer, including responsibility for the
propriety and regularity of the public
finances and for the keeping of proper
records and for safeguarding SPS’s
assets, are set out in the Accountable
Officer’s Memorandum issued by the
Scottish Government.

Statement of the Disclosure of
Information to Auditors
So far as the Accountable Officer is
aware:
> there is no relevant audit information

of which SPS’s auditors are unaware;
and
> the Accountable Officer has taken all

steps that he ought to have taken to
make himself aware of any relevant
audit information, and to establish that
the agency’s auditors are aware of this
information.
Accountable Officer’s Confirmation
The Accountable Officer confirms:
> that the Annual Report and Accounts

as a whole are fair, balanced and
understandable; and
> that he takes personal responsibility

for the annual report and accounts,
and the judgements required for
determining that they are fair,
balanced and understandable.
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GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
Scope of responsibilities
As Accountable Officer, I have
responsibility for maintaining a sound
system of internal control that supports
the achievement of the SPS policies,
aims and objectives set by Scottish
Ministers whilst safeguarding the public
funds and departmental assets for
which I am personally responsible, in
accordance with the responsibilities
assigned to me.
As Accountable Officer, I am
accountable to Scottish Ministers for
the operation of the SPS; for advising
them on policy on prisons; for the
management of SPS and for planning its
future development.
Governance Framework
The SPS is an Executive Agency of the
Scottish Government, and is required
to comply with the Scottish Public
Finance Manual. The SPS Framework
Document (refreshed in March 2016 in
line with best practice guidance and in
consultation with Scottish Government)
sets out the policy and resources within
which SPS operates, including delegated
financial limits. The Framework
Document can be found on SPS’s
website at the following link http//www.
sps.gov.uk /Corporate/Publications/
Publication-3925.aspx.
As Chief Executive, in the course
of 2016-17, I was supported by an
Advisory Board, comprising four
Non-Executive Directors and five
internal Executive Directors. During
the year, the Advisory Board met on six
occasions.

The role of the Advisory Board is to
undertake a supportive, advisory,
questioning and enabling function.
It supports me as Chief Executive in
the discharge of my role by providing
a robust, challenging forum to bring
issues to a knowledgeable group of
Executive and Non-Executive Directors
to help me reach defensible and wellinformed decisions.
The role of Advisory Board may include:
> Strategy – constructively challenging

and contributing to the development
of strategy, suggesting ambitious
and customer-focused targets and
innovative approaches for delivery.
> Performance – scrutinising the

performance of management
in meeting goals and objectives
and monitoring the reporting of
performance.
> Risk – satisfying themselves of

the reliability and integrity of risk
management and internal control
arrangements. Providing assurance
that the framework for organisational
governance is operating effectively.
The Advisory Board is supported in its
work by the RMAC, which is currently
chaired by an Independent Member
of the Committee. The RMAC is
responsible for overseeing risk, control
and governance arrangements in place
throughout SPS, and considers SPS
exposure to financial risks including
fraud and corruption and operational
risk and its capacity to respond. The
RMAC met on five occasions during
2016-17. The meetings were attended
by me as Chief Executive, relevant
Executive and Non-Executive Directors,
Independent Members and both internal
and external auditors.
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Risk and Control Framework
The SPS has adopted a risk
management strategy which aligns with
the transformational vision, mission and
values of SPS, whilst also supporting the
operational delivery of its core business
and contributing to the wider Strategy
for Justice in Scotland set out by the
Scottish Government.
The risk management strategy
of the SPS sets the requirements
of compliance with principles and
approaches to risk management that
are to be executed by relevant parties.
The main objective of this strategy
is to ensure a unified and effective
organisational mechanism of risk
management within the SPS. SPS
risk management arrangements are
embedded in management processes
throughout the organisation.
The SPS risk management strategy
adopts best practice where appropriate
in the identification, evaluation, and
control of risks to ensure that they
are eliminated or reduced to an
acceptable level. The risk management
strategy also allows the SPS to exploit
opportunities and where appropriate,
take managed and understood risks to
better achieve its objectives.
The review of risk is an integral part
of monthly reporting cycles and
the Executive Management Group
meets to formally consider risk on
a quarterly basis. Outwith these
cycles, SPS views risk management
as a critical component of effective
business management and utilises risk
management techniques to better
inform decision-making.
The risk profile of the SPS is continually
evolving and as such, risk management
arrangements are actively monitored
and reviewed to gain assurance that
the approach remains effective and
appropriate.
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Risk Assessment
Risk owners (individuals responsible
for managing the risk) identify risks
relating to their areas of responsibility
and assess the risk to successful
achievement of objectives according
to the likelihood of occurrence and the
severity of impact.
Risk registers are reviewed on a monthly
basis. Existing risks are challenged
in relation to their scoring and
effectiveness of control and mitigation
measures. New and emerging risks are
also considered and suitable additions
are recorded in the appropriate risk
registers.
Risk Control/Mitigation Plans
All risks, once identified, are required to
have a suitable mitigation plan in place
to reduce the risk of exposure to the
SPS. Risk owners design and implement
appropriate risk control/mitigation
plans, which provide proper and timely
responses to the risks identified. These
plans are monitored on a regular basis
and their effectiveness is reviewed
and assessed. I am content with the
effectiveness of the overall SPS risk
management strategy and there are
no significant risks (other than those
disclosed in the overall performance
section of the report) which I, as
Accountable Officer, consider to require
disclosure.
The Purpose of the System of Internal
Control
The system of internal control
is designed to manage risk to an
acceptable level rather than eliminate
all risk of failure to achieve policies,
aims and objectives. It can therefore
only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance of effectiveness.
The system of internal control is based
on the ongoing process designed to
identify and prioritise the risks to the
achievement of departmental policies,
aims and objectives; to evaluate the

> Meetings of the Executive

likelihood of those risks being realised
and the impact should they be realised;
and to manage them efficiently,
effectively and economically. The
system of internal control has been
in place in the SPS for the year ended
31 March 2017 and up to the date of
the approval of the Annual Report and
Accounts and accords with Scottish
Government guidance.

Management Group to deal with
operational and other issues;
> Monitoring and reporting of

performance against key performance
indicators;
> Twice yearly Statements of Assurance

Review of Effectiveness
As Accountable Officer, I have
responsibility for reviewing the
effectiveness of the systems of internal
control and corporate governance. My
review is informed by:
> The work of internal audit who submit

regular reports to the SPS RMAC
which includes the Head of Audit’s
independent and objective opinion
on the adequacy and effectiveness of
the SPS systems of internal control,
together with recommendations for
improvement. In the course of the
financial year, internal audit reviews
identified 38 areas of limited assurance
out of the 143 studies undertaken.
Significant areas of limited assurance
related to financial controls at nine
establishments (20 areas of limited
assurance), provision of Social Work
Services in Prisons (2 areas of limited
assurance) and provision of Learning
Skills (2 areas of limited assurance).
Action plans have been developed for
each of these areas and progress will
be followed up by internal audit in early
2017-18;
> Executive managers who have

responsibility for the development and
maintenance of the internal control
framework;
> Meetings of the SPS Advisory Board

within the financial year;

> Annual report to the SPS Advisory

Board from the Chairman of the RMAC
concerning the corporate governance
and control environment;
> Attendance of the Chairman of the

RMAC (as an observer) at Advisory
Board meetings;
> Regular reports from internal

assurance providers (Head of Health
& Safety, Head of Fire Safety and
Head of Contract Management) on
the adequacy and effectiveness
of the system of internal control,
together with recommendations
for improvements and the action
management proposes taking to
implement these recommendations;
> External Audit who report to the RMAC

on SPS controls through management
letters and other reports;
> Progression of management action

from internal and external audit
reports;
> Regular reviews of progress on the

> The SPS Advisory Board is now chaired

by an Independent Non-Executive
Director;

from every Executive Director,
covering the key systems for which
they are responsible. The contents
of these Statements of Assurance
focus on the management of key risks
and identification of emerging issues
which could impact on the systems of
internal control. These Statements of
Assurance are reviewed by the Head
of Audit and Assurance and myself,
and the effectiveness of this process is
reported to the RMAC;

Annual Delivery Plan by the Advisory
Board;
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contents is mandatory and maintains
propriety in the control of Government
expenditure and income. It ensures
assets are properly safeguarded,
that proper accounting records are
maintained and ensures compliance
with current legislation and
Government financial procedures;

> Implementing measures for SPS

to ensure information security
and standardise and enhance the
management of information risk. In
the course of 2016-17, the Director
of Operational Support Services was
the organisation’s Senior Information
Risk Owner (SIRO) and who chaired the
Information Governance Forum which
met seven times during 2016-17;

> In the year 2016-17, the Head of Audit

& Assurance’s review of the corporate
governance and control environment,
management of risk and reliance
placed on the work of other external
assurance providers and review bodies
allowed him in forming an opinion, as
Head of Audit & Assurance, to offer an
overall level of reasonable assurance
for financial year 2016-17.

> The Change Portfolio Board, who met

five times during 2016-17 to review
key projects and who report regularly
to the SPS Executive Group and SPS
Advisory Board;
> The use of Project Management and

gateway review processes to manage
major projects and a review of key
projects by Internal Audit;
> The Fraud Response Group (FRG),

which focuses on fraudulent activity
within the organisation at an early
stage, reviews the lessons learned,
promotes awareness of fraudulent
activity and influences policy
development. The FRG met on four
occasions during the financial year and
will deliver its annual report to the May
2017 meeting of the RMAC;
> The establishment of a Corruption/

Integrity Response Group within SPS
to provide assurance all allegations of
corruption are considered and where
appropriate, investigated. This Group
was established in March 2017 and has
met on one occasion;
> The SPS Financial Policy and Guidance

Manual provides standard authority
for establishments, SPS College,
Central Stores and Headquarters
Directorates. Compliance with its

As part of our ongoing work and as part
of the assurance process, we continue
to identify areas for improvement in
our governance and internal controls
framework. I am content that my review,
informed by all of the items detailed
above, provides overall substantial
assurance of the effectiveness of the
systems of governance and internal
control within the SPS.
Significant Governance Issues
There have been no other significant
governance issues identified during
the year in relation to the overall
governance framework.

Colin McConnell
Chief Executive
27 June 2017
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ACCOUNTABILITY REPORT –
REMUNERATION AND STAFF REPORT
The purpose of this section is to provide information on the remuneration and pension
arrangements of SPS’s Advisory Board members. It also provides information on staff
numbers and related costs for the year.
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REMUNERATION REPORT

The remuneration of senior civil servants is set in accordance
with the Civil Service Management Code available at
www.civilservice.gov.uk and with independent advice from
the Senior Salaries Review Body (SSRB).
Service Contracts
The Constitutional Reform and
Governance Act 2010 requires Civil
Service appointments to be made
on merit on the basis of fair and
open competition. The Recruitment
Principles published by the Civil Service
Commission specify the circumstances
when appointments may be made
otherwise.
Unless otherwise stated below,
the officials covered by this report
hold appointments which are openended. Early termination, other than
for misconduct, would result in the
individual receiving compensation as set
out in the Civil Service Compensation
Scheme.
Further information about the work of the
Civil Service Commission can be found at
www.civilservicecommission.org.uk

Remuneration Policy
The remuneration of senior civil
servants is set in accordance with
the Civil Service Management Code
available at www.civilservice.gov.uk
and with independent advice from the
Senior Salaries Review Body (SSRB).
In reaching its recommendations, the
Review Body has regard to the following
considerations:
> the need to recruit, retain and

motivate suitably able and qualified
people to exercise their different
responsibilities;
> regional/local variations in labour

markets and their effects on the
recruitment and retention of staff;
> Government policies for improving

the public services including the
requirement on departments to meet
the output targets for the delivery of
departmental services;
> the funds available to departments

as set out in the Government’s
departmental expenditure limits; and
> the Government’s inflation target.
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The Review Body takes account of
the evidence it receives about wider
economic considerations and the
affordability of its recommendations.
Further information about the work
of the Review Body can be found at
www.ome.uk.com.
The remuneration of the Executive
Board members is determined under
the Civil Service Management Code.
The remuneration of Non-Executive
Board members is agreed with them on
appointment.
Remuneration (including salary) and
pension entitlements
The following sections provide details of
the remuneration and pension interests
of the SPS Board Members.
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Remuneration (including salary) and Pension Entitlements
The following sections provide details of the remuneration and pension interests of the SPS Board Members.
Remuneration (salary and pensions)
Single total figure of remuneration
Benefits in kind
(to nearest £100)6

Salary £000

Pension benefits to
nearest £0007

Total to nearest £000

2016-17

2015-16

2016-17

2015-16

2016-17

2015-16

2016-17

2015-16

110-115

110-115

-

8

25

35

135-140

145-150

E MURCH
Director of Corporate Change

80-85

80-85

-

-

18

25

100-105

105-110

C TOPLEY
Director of Corporate Services

80-85

80-85

-

4

33

32

115-120

110-115

-

(75-80 Full Year
Equivalent)

-

-

-

9

-

30-35

F MUNRO9
Interim Director of Operational
Support Services

80-85

(75-80 Full Year
Equivalent)

-

-

49

28

130-135

90-95

T MEDHURST10
Director of Strategy & Innovation

80-85

(80-85 Full Year
Equivalent)

-

-

26

28

105-110

90-95

(80-85 Full Year
Equivalent)

-

-

25

22

90-95

85-90

(80-85 Full Year
Equivalent)

-

-

-

8

-

20-25

-

Z VAN ZWANENBERG
Non-Exec Director

5-10

5-10

-

-

-

-

5-10

5-10

S BROWELL
Non-Exec Director

5-10

0-5

-

-

-

-

5-10

0-5

H MONRO
Non-Exec Director

5-10

0-5

-

-

-

-

5-10

0-5

A MCMILLAN
Non-Exec Director

5-10

5-10

-

-

-

-

5-10

5-10

C McCONNELL
Chief Executive

I DAVIDSON8
Director of Strategy & Innovation

M STONEY11
Interim Director of
Operational Delivery
J KERR12
Director of Operational Delivery

65-70

(80-85 Full Year
Equivalent)

10-15

20-25

60-65

65-70

60-65

6. C McConnell & C Topley – P11d for Professional Subscriptions submitted for 2015-16.
7. The value of pension benefits accrued during the year is calculated as the real increase in pension multiplied by 20 less the contributions made by
the individual. The real increase excludes increases due to inflation or any increase or decrease due to a transfer of pension rights.
8. I Davidson transferred from SPS on 26 July 2015.
9. F Munro Interim Director of Operational Support Services from 15 June 2015.
10. T Medhurst was Interim Director of Strategy & Innovation from 25 May 2015 and became permanent Director of Strategy & Innovation from 2 June
2016. A retrospective change was made to salary history and closing balance for 2015-16 was recalculated.
11. M Stoney Interim Director of Operational Delivery until 29 January 2017.
12. J Kerr Director of Operational Delivery from 23 January 2017.
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Salary
‘Salary’ includes gross salary; overtime;
recruitment and retention allowances;
and any other allowance to the extent
that it is subject to UK taxation. This
report is based on accrued payments
made by the SPS and thus recorded in
these accounts.
Benefits in kind
The monetary value of benefits in kind
covers any benefits provided by the
employer and treated by HM Revenue
and Customs as a taxable emolument.
There were no benefits in kind paid
during the year (2015-16: £1.2k).

Pay multiples
Reporting bodies are required to
disclose the relationship between
the remuneration of the highestpaid director in their organisation
and the median remuneration of the
organisation’s workforce.
The banded remuneration of the
highest-paid director in SPS in the
financial year 2016-17 was £110,000£115,000 (2015-16, £110,000-115,000).
This was four times (2015-16, four) the
median remuneration of the workforce,
which was £29,180 (2015-16, £28,891).

Bonuses
Bonuses are based on performance
levels attained and are made as part of
the appraisal process. Bonuses relate
to the performance in the year in which
they become payable to the individual.
There were no bonuses paid during the
year (2015-16: nil).
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In 2016-17, no employees received
remuneration in excess of the highestpaid director. Remuneration ranged
from £13,480 to banded remuneration
of £110,000-£115,000 (full time
equivalents) (2015-16, £12,235 to
banded remuneration of £110,000 –
£115,000 (full time equivalents)).
Total remuneration includes salary, nonconsolidated performance-related pay
and benefits-in-kind. It does not include
severance payments, employer pension
contributions and the cash equivalent
transfer value of pensions.
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Pension Benefits
Accrued pension at
pension age as at
31/3/2017 and
related lump sum
£000

Real increase in
pension and
related lump sum
at pension age
£000

C McCONNELL
Chief Executive

45-50
plus lump sum of
145-150

E MURCH
Director of Corporate Change

CETV at
31/3/17
£000

CETV at
31/3/16
£000

Real increase
in CETV
£000

0-2.5
plus lump sum of 2.5-5

1,059

992

22

30-35
plus lump sum of
95-100

0-2.5
plus lump sum of
2.5-5

720

671

17

10-15

0-2.5

115

97

10

I DAVIDSON
Director of Strategy & Innovation

-

-

-

360

-

F MUNRO
Director of Operational Support
Services

25-30
plus lump sum of
85-90

0-2.5
plus lump sum of
5-7.5

567

503

40

T MEDHURST13
Director of Strategy & Innovation

30-35
plus lump sum of
95-100

0-2.5
plus lump sum of
2.5-5

658

603

21

M STONEY
Interim Director of Operational Delivery

25-30
plus lump sum of
70-75

0-2.5
plus lump sum of
0-2.5

468

427

16

J KERR
Director of Operational Delivery

30-35
plus lump sum of
80-85

0-2.5
plus lump sum of
0-2.5

542

535

5

Officials

C TOPLEY
Director of Corporate Services

Z VAN ZWANENBERG
Non-Exec Director

No Pension Entitlement

S BROWELL
Non-Exec Director

No Pension Entitlement

H MONRO
Non-Exec Director

No Pension Entitlement

A McMILLAN
Non-Exec Director

No Pension Entitlement

13. T Medhurst retrospective change to salary history, closing balance for 2015-16 recalculated.
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Civil Service pensions
Pension benefits are provided
through the Civil Service pension
arrangements. From 1 April 2015 a
new pension scheme for civil servants
was introduced – the Civil Servants
and Others Pension Scheme or alpha,
which provides benefits on a career
average basis with a normal pension age
equal to the member’s State Pension
Age (or 65 if higher). From that date
all newly appointed civil servants and
the majority of those already in service
joined alpha. Prior to that date, civil
servants participated in the Principal
Civil Service Pension Scheme (PCSPS).
The PCSPS has four sections: three
providing benefits on a final salary basis
(classic, premium or classic plus) with
a normal pension age of 60; and one
providing benefits on a whole career
basis (nuvos) with a normal pension age
of 65.
These statutory arrangements are
unfunded with the cost of benefits met
by monies voted by Parliament each
year. Pensions payable under classic,
premium, classic plus, nuvos and alpha
are increased annually in line with
Pensions Increase legislation. Existing
members of the PCSPS who were within
10 years of their normal pension age
on 1 April 2012 remained in the PCSPS
after 1 April 2015. Those who were
between 10 years and 13 years and 5
months from their normal pension age
on 1 April 2012 will switch into alpha
sometime between 1 June 2015 and 1
February 2022. All members who switch
to alpha have their PCSPS benefits
‘banked’, with those with earlier benefits
in one of the final salary sections of the
PCSPS having those benefits based on
their final salary when they leave alpha.
(The pension figures quoted for officials
show pension earned in PCSPS or alpha
– as appropriate. Where the official has
benefits in both the PCSPS and alpha
the figure quoted is the combined value
of their benefits in the two schemes.)

Members joining from October 2002
may opt for either the appropriate
defined benefit arrangement or
a ‘money purchase’ stakeholder
pension with an employer contribution
(partnership pension account).
Employee contributions are salaryrelated and range between 3% and
8.05% of pensionable earnings for
members of classic (and members of
alpha who were members of classic
immediately before joining alpha) and
between 4.6% and 8.05% for members
of premium, classic plus, nuvos and
all other members of alpha. Benefits
in classic accrue at the rate of 1/80th
of final pensionable earnings for each
year of service. In addition, a lump sum
equivalent to three years initial pension
is payable on retirement. For premium,
benefits accrue at the rate of 1/60th
of final pensionable earnings for each
year of service. Unlike classic, there is
no automatic lump sum. classic plus
is essentially a hybrid with benefits
for service before 1 October 2002
calculated broadly as per classic and
benefits for service from October 2002
worked out as in premium. In nuvos a
member builds up a pension based on
his pensionable earnings during their
period of scheme membership. At the
end of the scheme year (31 March) the
member’s earned pension account is
credited with 2.3% of their pensionable
earnings in that scheme year and the
accrued pension is uprated in line with
Pensions Increase legislation. Benefits
in alpha build up in a similar way to
nuvos, except that the accrual rate in
2.32%. In all cases members may opt to
give up (commute) pension for a lump
sum up to the limits set by the Finance
Act 2004.
The partnership pension account is a
stakeholder pension arrangement. The
employer makes a basic contribution
of between 8% and 14.75% (depending
on the age of the member) into a
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stakeholder pension product chosen
by the employee from a panel of
providers. The employee does not
have to contribute, but where they
do make contributions, the employer
will match these up to a limit of 3%
of pensionable salary (in addition to
the employer’s basic contribution).
Employers also contribute a further
0.5% of pensionable salary to cover the
cost of centrally-provided risk benefit
cover (death in service and ill health
retirement).
The accrued pension quoted is the
pension the member is entitled to
receive when they reach pension age,
or immediately on ceasing to be an
active member of the scheme if they
are already at or over pension age.
Pension age is 60 for members of
classic, premium and classic plus, 65 for
members of nuvos, and the higher of 65
or State Pension Age for members of
alpha. (The pension figures quoted for
officials show pension earned in PCSPS
or alpha – as appropriate. Where the
official has benefits in both the PCSPS
and alpha the figure quoted is the
combined value of their benefits in the
two schemes, but note that part of that
pension may be payable from different
ages.)
Further details about the Civil Service
pension arrangements can be found
at the website
www.civilservicepensionscheme.org.uk
The Cash Equivalent Transfer Value
(CETV)
A Cash Equivalent Transfer Value (CETV)
is the actuarially assessed capitalised
value of the pension scheme benefits
accrued by a member at a particular
point in time. The benefits valued
are the member’s accrued benefits
and any contingent spouse’s pension
payable from the scheme. A CETV is a
payment made by a pension scheme
or arrangement to secure pension
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benefits in another pension scheme or
arrangement when the member leaves
a scheme and chooses to transfer
the benefits accrued in their former
scheme. The pension figures shown
relate to the benefits that the individual
has accrued as a consequence of
their total membership of the pension
scheme, not just their service in a senior
capacity to which disclosure applies.
The figures include the value of any
pension benefit in another scheme or
arrangement which the member has
transferred to the Civil Service pension
arrangements. They also include any
additional pension benefit accrued to
the member as a result of their buying
additional pension benefits at their

own cost. CETVs are worked out in
accordance with The Occupational
Pension Schemes (Transfer Values)
(Amendment) Regulations 2008 and
do not take account of any actual or
potential reduction to benefits resulting
from Lifetime Allowance Tax which may
be due when pension benefits are taken.
Real increase in CETV
This reflects the increase in CETV that
is funded by the employer. It does not
include the increase in accrued pension
due to inflation, contributions paid by
the employee (including the value of
any benefits transferred from another
pension scheme or arrangement) and
uses common market valuation factors
for the start and end of the period.

Compensation for loss of office
Compulsory, Flexible or Approved Early
Retirement terms
There were no SPS Board members
that left on Compulsory, Flexible or
Approved Early Retirement terms.
Compulsory or Flexible Early Severance
terms
There were no SPS Board members
that left on Compulsory or Flexible Early
Severance terms.
Voluntary Exit, Voluntary Redundancy
or Compulsory Redundancy terms
There were no SPS Board members
that left on Voluntary Exit, Voluntary
Redundancy or Compulsory
Redundancy terms.
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STAFF REPORT
As at 31 March 2017 there were 4,568 staff in post including four Non-Executive Directors. The split across grade and gender is
detailed in the table below.
Male

2016-17
Female

Total

Male

2015-16
Female

Total

Senior Civil Servants
Directors
Non-Executive Directors
Employees

3
1
2
3,232

2
0
2
1,326

5
1
4
4,558

2
2
2
3,317

2
0
2
1,324

4
2
4
4,641

Total

3,238

1,330

4,568

3,323

1,328

4,651

Staff Numbers and Related Costs
The following sections have been subject to audit by SPS’s auditors.
The table below shows the staff costs for the year ended 31 March 2017 along with the prior year comparisons.
2016-17
Permanently
employed
staff

2016-17

2016-17

2015-16

Others

Total

Total

£000

£000

£000

£000

Wages and salaries
Social security costs
Other pension costs

128,551
12,766
26,125

1,633
21
39

130,184
12,787
26,164

127,783
9,089
26,325

Sub Total

167,442

1,693

169,135

163,197

(251)

0

(251)

(246)

167,191

1,693

168,884

162,951

Staff Costs

less recoveries in respect of outward secondments
Total net costs

Permanently employed staff includes staff employed on fixed term contracts. Others includes costs associated with agency staff and inward secondees.
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The PCSPS and the Civil Servant and
Other Pension Scheme (CSOPS) –
known as ‘Alpha’ – are unfunded multiemployer defined benefit schemes but
SPS is unable to identify its share of the
underlying assets and liabilities. The
scheme actuary valued the PCSPS as at
31 March 2012. Details can be found in
the resource accounts of the Cabinet
Office: Civil Superannuation http://
www.civilservicepensionscheme.org.
uk/about-us/resource-accounts/.
For 2016-17, employers’ contributions
of £26,062k were payable to the PCSPS
(2015-16 £26,198k) at one of four
rates in the range 20.0% to 24.5% of
pensionable earnings, based on salary
bands. The Scheme Actuary reviews

employer contributions usually every
four years following a full scheme
valuation. The contribution rates are
set to meet the cost of the benefits
accruing during 2016-17 to be paid
when the member retires and not the
benefits paid during this period to
existing pensioners.

employee contributions up to 3% of
pensionable earnings. In addition,
employer contributions of £4.6k (201516 £2.6k), 0.5% of pensionable pay,
were payable to the PCSPS to cover the
cost of the future provision of lump sum
benefits on death in service or ill health
retirement of these employees.

Employees can opt to open a
partnership pension account, a
stakeholder pension with an employer
contribution. Employers’ contributions
of £141k (2015-16 £78k) were paid
to one of more of the panel of three
appointed stakeholder pension
providers. Employer contributions
are age-related and ranged from 8%
to 14.75%. Employers also match

Contributions due to the partnership
pension providers at the balance sheet
date were nil. Contributions prepaid at
that date were nil.
During the reporting year 11 individuals
(2015-16; 13 persons) retired early on
ill-health grounds; the total additional
accrued pension liabilities in the year
amounted to £25k (2015-16 £22k).

Average Number of Persons Employed
The average number of whole-time equivalent persons employed during the year was as follows.
Persons employed

2016-17

2015-16

Directly employed
Other

4,360
6

4,464
7

Total

4,366

4,471

Directly employed includes non-permanent staff.

Reporting of Civil Service and other compensation schemes – exit packages
Number of compulsory
redundancies

Number of other
departures agreed

Total number of exit
packages by cost band

<£10,000

-

2 (2)

2 (2)

£10,000 – £25,000

-

6 (3)

6 (3)

£25,000 – £50,000

-

1 (2)

1 (2)

£50,000 – £100,000

-

4 (0)

4 (0)

£150,000 – £200,000

-

0 (0)

0 (0)

Total number of exit packages

-

13 (7)

13 (7)

Total resource cost/£

-

£377,647
(£136,829)

£377,647
(£136,829)

Exit package cost band

Comparative data is shown (in brackets) for previous year.
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Redundancy and other departure
costs have been paid in accordance
with the provisions of the Civil
Service Compensation Scheme, a
statutory scheme made under the
Superannuation Act 1972. Exit costs
are accounted for in full in the year
the decision of departure is agreed.
Where the agency has agreed early
retirements, the additional costs are
met by the agency and not by the Civil
Service pension scheme. Ill-health
retirement costs are met by the pension
scheme and are not included in the
table.
The table on previous page includes
exit costs relating to Voluntary Exit
Schemes (VES) approved by Cabinet
Office and capability schemes approved
by SPS. During 2016-17 there were no
VES exits (2015-16, no exits) and 13
exits under capability schemes at a cost
of £378k (2015-16, seven exits at a total
cost of £137k).
Occupational Health
SPS promotes employee wellbeing
through various initiatives supported
by a number of partners, including the
Scottish Centre for Healthy Working
Lives, our Occupational Health
Provider and our Employee Wellbeing
Programme. Throughout 2016-17 SPS
has also been working in partnership
with its TUS colleagues to develop an
Employee Wellbeing Policy.
The Scottish Centre for Healthy
Working Lives works with employers
to enable them to understand, protect
and improve the health of their
employees. The Healthy Working Lives
Award (HWLA) programme supports
employers and employees to develop
health promotion and safety themes
in the workplace in a practical, logical
way that is beneficial to all. As a result
of wellbeing initiatives undertaken in
2016-17, seven SPS establishments
have achieved the Gold award,
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with two of these establishments
having also achieved the Mental
Health Commendation Award, four
establishments have achieved the
Silver Award, and three establishments
have achieved, or are working towards,
the Bronze Award.
During 2016-17, Average Working Days
Lost (AWDL) has increased to 11.8, which
is up by 1.6 AWDL per employee on the
2015-16 figure of 10.2. Mental ill health
accounts for 10% of short term and 33%
of long term absence at SPS. To support
the introduction of a new SPS Employee
Wellbeing Policy, SPS aims to better
understand mental ill health at SPS by
conducting an anonymous survey about
employees’ mental health and taking
appropriate action according to the
analysis of the results.
It is anticipated that the SPS Employee
Wellbeing Policy will be introduced in
2017-18. It aims to promote employee
wellbeing, reduce discrimination and
ensure that all employees have fair and
equitable access to wellbeing activities
and resources. The policy aims to
create a culture of support within the
workplace where employees can talk
about health problems without the fear
of stigma or discrimination and receive
appropriate support. A review of the
Managing Attendance and Absence
Policy and Procedure (MAAPP) is due to
commence in 2017.
SPS carried out a six month trial in
partnership with our Occupational
Health providers in 2016 introducing
onsite clinics. SPS will consider rolling
this service out to establishments
throughout 2017-18.
SPS’s Employee Assistance Programme
offers a free confidential 24 hour
service providing specialist support and
information for employees and their
immediate family on health and personal
matters.

Staff Policies Applied during the
Financial Year
Of the applications made in the year
2016-17, 1.7% reported to have a
disability and of the offers made in
the same period, 1.4% were made to
candidates reporting to be disabled.
Fifty-one candidates applied to use the
Guaranteed Interview scheme and, of
those, 14 progressed to the later stages
in the selection process. The policies we
apply for the continuing employment of
employees who become disabled and
the training, career development and
promotion of disabled employees are
our Disability Equality Policy 2009, Equal
Opportunities in Employment Policy and
Dignity at Work Policy (both published in
2017). We have an active staff network
and supported two members to
attend a conference on disability in the
workplace to grow their knowledge and
enhance the work of the network.
The following sections of the
Remuneration and Staff Report are
subject to audit opinion:
>Single total figure of remuneration for
each director;
>CETV disclosures for each director;
>Payments to past directors;
>Compensation for loss of office;
>Pay multiples;
>Exit packages;
>Analysis of staff costs and numbers.

37

ACCOUNTABILITY REPORT –
PARLIAMENTARY ACCOUNTABILITY
AND AUDIT REPORT
The purpose of this section is to provide details of any losses incurred by SPS during the year.
It also contains the Independent Auditor’s report.
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PARLIAMENTARY ACCOUNTABILITY REPORT
Losses and Special Payments
The following losses and special payments have been included in the accounts and have been audited by SPS’s auditors:
2016-17

2015-16

Cases

£000

Cases

£000

Losses Statement
Cash losses
Losses of accountable stores
Fruitless payments

185
292
9

10
35
439

166
298
0

40
(8)
0

Total

486

484

464

32

Special Payments
Special payments

271

1,534

260

1,256

Special payments include amounts settled for staff compensation and related costs (see notes to the accounts 13 and 17).
Other Notes
Fruitless payments include project costs of £439k associated with the failed pilot of an Electronic Procurement system.
Remote Contingent Liabilities
In addition to contingent liabilities reported within the meaning of IAS 37, the agency is also required to report liabilities for
which the likelihood of a transfer of economic benefit in settlement is too remote to meet the definition of contingent liability.
SPS has nothing to report in respect of these matters.

Colin McConnell
Chief Executive
27 June 2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
Independent auditor’s report to
Scottish Prison Service, the Auditor
General for Scotland and the Scottish
Parliament
This report is made solely to the
parties to whom it is addressed in
accordance with the Public Finance and
Accountability (Scotland) Act 2000 and
for no other purpose. In accordance
with paragraph 120 of the Code of
Audit Practice approved by the Auditor
General for Scotland, We do not
undertake to have responsibilities to
members or officers, in their individual
capacities, or to third parties.
Report on the audit of the financial
statements
Opinion on financial statements
We have audited the financial
statements in the annual report and
accounts of the Scottish Prison Service
for the year ended 31 March 2017 under
the Public Finance and Accountability
(Scotland) Act 2000. The financial
statements comprise the Statement
of Comprehensive Net Expenditure,
the Statement of Financial Position, the
Statement of Cash Flow, the Statement
of Changes in Taxpayers’ Equity, and
notes to the accounts, including a
summary of significant accounting
policies. The financial reporting
framework that has been applied in
their preparation is applicable law
and International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the
European Union, and as interpreted and
adapted by the 2016/17 Government
Financial Reporting Manual (the
2016/17 FReM).
In our opinion the accompanying
financial statements:
> give a true and fair view in accordance
with the Public Finance and
Accountability (Scotland) Act 2000
and directions made thereunder by
the Scottish Ministers of the state of
the body’s affairs as at 31 March 2017
and of its net expenditure for the year
then ended;

> have been properly prepared in

accordance with IFRSs as adopted by
the European Union, as interpreted
and adapted by the 2016/17 FReM;
and
> have been prepared in accordance
with the requirements of the Public
Finance and Accountability (Scotland)
Act 2000 and directions made
thereunder by the Scottish Ministers.
Basis of opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance
with applicable law and International
Standards on Auditing in the UK
and Ireland (ISAs (UK&I)). Our
responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the
body in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the financial statements in the
UK including the Financial Reporting
Council’s Ethical Standards for
Auditors, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements. We believe
that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.
Responsibilities of the Accountable
Officer for the financial statements
As explained more fully in the
Statement of the Accountable Officer
Responsibilities, the Accountable
Officer is responsible for the
preparation of financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance
with the financial reporting framework,
and for such internal control as the
Accountable Officer determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements
Our responsibility is to audit and
express an opinion on the financial
statements in accordance with
applicable legal requirements and
ISAs (UK&I) as required by the Code
of Audit Practice approved by the
Auditor General for Scotland. Those
standards require us to comply with
the Financial Reporting Council’s
Ethical Standards for Auditors. An audit
involves obtaining evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements sufficient to give
reasonable assurance that the financial
statements are free from material
misstatement, whether caused
by fraud or error. This includes an
assessment of: whether the accounting
policies are appropriate to the
body’s circumstances and have been
consistently applied and adequately
disclosed; the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made
by the Accountable Officer; and the
overall presentation of the financial
statements.
Our objectives are to achieve
reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs (UK&I) will always
detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

ACCOUNTABILITY REPORT – INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

SCOTTISH PRISON SERVICE
ANNUAL REPORT & ACCOUNTS 2016-2017

Other information in the annual report
and accounts
The Accountable Officer is responsible
for the other information in the
annual report and accounts. The
other information comprises the
information other than the financial
statements and our auditor’s report
thereon. Our opinion on the financial
statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion
thereon except on matters prescribed
by the Auditor General for Scotland
to the extent explicitly stated later
in this report. In connection with our
audit of the financial statements in
accordance with ISAs (UK&I), our
responsibility is to read all the financial
and non-financial information in
the annual report and accounts to
identify material inconsistencies with
the audited financial statements and
to identify any information that is
apparently materially incorrect based
on, or materially inconsistent with,
the knowledge acquired by us in the
course of performing the audit. If we
become aware of any apparent material
misstatements or inconsistencies we
consider the implications for our report.
Report on regularity of expenditure
and income
Opinion on regularity
In our opinion in all material respects:
> the expenditure and income in the
financial statements were incurred
or applied in accordance with any
applicable enactments and guidance
issued by the Scottish Ministers, the
Budget (Scotland) Act covering the
financial year and sections 4 to 7 of
the Public Finance and Accountability
(Scotland) Act 2000; and
> the sums paid out of the Scottish
Consolidated Fund for the purpose
of meeting the expenditure shown in
the financial statements were applied
in accordance with section 65 of the
Scotland Act 1998.

Responsibilities for regularity
The Accountable Officer is responsible
for ensuring the regularity of
expenditure and income. We are
responsible for expressing an opinion
on the regularity of expenditure and
income in accordance with the Public
Finance and Accountability (Scotland)
Act 2000.
Report on other requirements
Opinions on other prescribed matters
We are required by the Auditor General
for Scotland to express an opinion on
the following matters.
In our opinion, the auditable part of
the Remuneration and Staff Report
has been properly prepared in
accordance with the Public Finance
and Accountability (Scotland) Act 2000
and directions made thereunder by the
Scottish Ministers.
In our opinion, based on the work
undertaken in the course of the audit
> the information given in the
Performance Report for the
financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent
with the financial statements and
that report has been prepared in
accordance with the Public Finance
and Accountability (Scotland) Act
2000 and directions made thereunder
by the Scottish Ministers; and
> the information given in the
Governance Statement for the
financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent
with the financial statements and
that report has been prepared in
accordance with the Public Finance
and Accountability (Scotland) Act
2000 and directions made thereunder
by the Scottish Ministers.
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Matters on which we are required to
report by exception
We are required by the Auditor General
for Scotland to report to you if, in our
opinion:
> adequate accounting records have
not been kept; or
> the financial statements and the
auditable part of the Remuneration
and Staff Report are not in agreement
with the accounting records; or
> we have not received all the
information and explanations we
require for our audit.
We have nothing to report in respect of
these matters.

Gary Devlin
(for and on behalf of Scott-Moncrieff)
Exchange Place 3
Semple Street
Edinburgh
EH3 8BL
27 June 2017
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE NET EXPENDITURE
for the year ended 31 March 2017
2016-17

Restated
2015-16

Note

£000

£000

3

(7,351)

(7,188)

Staff Report

168,884

162,951

4

162,030

159,902

Total operating expenditure

330,914

322,853

Net operating expenditure

323,563

315,665

7,475

8,022

331,038

323,687

2016-17

Restated
2015-16

£000

£000

1,196

(82,852)

332,234

240,835

Income
Income from all sources
Expenditure
Staff costs 
Other expenditure

Finance expense
Net expenditure for the year

4

Other Comprehensive Net Expenditure

Items that will not be reclassified to net operating costs:
Net loss (gain) on revaluation of property, plant and equipment
Comprehensive net expenditure for the year

The notes on pages 46 to 69 form part of these accounts.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
as at 31 March 2017

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Other receivables

2016-17

Restated
2015-16

Note

£000

£000

5
6
10

1,072,162
902
119

1,095,443
1,194
96

1,073,183

1,096,733

Total non-current assets
Current assets
Assets classified as held for sale

5.1

42

0

9

2,741

2,377

Trade and other receivables

10

5,808

6,126

Cash and cash equivalents

11

632

757

9,223

9,260

1,082,406

1,105,993

Inventories

Total current assets
Total assets
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables

12

(40,758)

(27,954)

Provisions

13

(6,264)

(4,271)

(47,022)

(32,225)

1,035,384

1,073,768

Total current liabilities
Total assets less net current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Other payables

12

(89,107)

(93,490)

Provisions

13

(11,838)

(10,493)

(100,945)

(103,983)

934,439

969,785

Total non-current liabilities
Total assets less total liabilities
Taxpayers’ equity and other reserves
General fund

SOCTE

696,709

723,800

Revaluation reserve

SOCTE

237,730

245,985

934,439

969,785

Total equity

Colin McConnell
Chief Executive
27 June 2017
The Chief Executive authorised these financial statements for issue on 27 June 2017.
The notes on pages 46 to 69 form part of these accounts.
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
for the year ended 31 March 2017
2016-17

Restated
2015-16

£000

£000

(331,038)

(323,687)

18

103

96

Depreciation and impairment

4

24,694

24,487

Loss on sale of tangible assets

4

34

560

Interest payable in net operating cost for financing

7,458

8,005

(Increase)/Decrease in inventories

(364)

112

295

(277)

20,552

11,125

3,338

1,307

(274,929)

(278,272)

(7,171)

(16,157)

(8)

(490)

7

852

(7,172)

(15,795)

296,785

312,804

(7,351)

(10,520)

Note
Cash flows from operating activities
Net operating cost
Notional charges

Decrease/(Increase) in trade receivables
Increase in trade payables
Use of provisions

13

Net cash outflow from operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of intangible assets
Proceeds of disposal of property, plant and equipment
Net cash outflow from investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities
From the Consolidated Fund
Capital element of payments in respect of finance leases and on balance sheet
PFI/PPP contracts
Interest element of finance leases and on balance sheet PFI/PPP contracts
Net financing
Net (decrease)/ increase in cash and cash equivalents in the period

(7,458)

(8,005)

281,976

294,279

(125)

212

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period

11

757

545

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period

11

632

757

The notes on pages 46 to 69 form part of these accounts.
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN TAXPAYERS’ EQUITY
for the year ended 31 March 2017
General Fund

Revaluation
Reserve

Total Equity

£000

£000

£000

730,179

172,021

902,200

0

20

20

Restated balance as at 1 April 2015

730,179

172,041

902,220

Net funding from Scottish Government

312,804

0

312,804

(323,687)

82,852

(240,835)

96

0

96

(1,000)

(3,500)

(4,500)

5,408

(5,408)

0

Restated balance at 31 March 2016

723,800

245,985

969,785

Net funding from Scottish Government

296,785

0

296,785

(331,038)

(1,196)

(332,234)

103

0

103

Note
Balance at 1 April 2015
Prior year adjustment

2

Comprehensive Net Expenditure for the year
Auditors’ remuneration

18

Transfer of land to Scottish Government
Transfers between reserves

Comprehensive Net Expenditure for the year
Auditors’ remuneration
Transfer of land to Scottish Government
Transfers between reserves
Balance at 31 March 2017

18

0

0

0

7,059

(7,059)

0

696,709

237,730

934,439

The notes on pages 46 to 69 form part of these accounts.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
1. Statement of Accounting Policies
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the 2016-17 Government Financial Reporting Manual (FReM)
issued by HM Treasury and the accounts direction issued by Scottish Ministers under section 19(4) of the Public Finance and
Accountability (Scotland) Act 2000. The accounting policies contained in the FReM apply International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS) as adapted or interpreted for the public sector context. Where the FReM permits a choice of accounting policy, the accounting
policy which is judged to be the most appropriate to the particular circumstances of SPS for the purpose of giving a true and fair view
has been selected. The particular policies adopted by SPS are described below. They have been applied consistently in dealing with
items that are considered material to the accounts.
The accounts are prepared using accounting policies, and, where necessary, estimation techniques, which are selected as the most
appropriate for the purpose of giving a true and fair view in accordance with the principles set out in International Accounting Standard
8: Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors. Changes in accounting policies which do not give rise to prior year
adjustments are reported in the relevant note.

Accounting Convention
The accounts have been prepared under the historic cost convention modified to account for the revaluation of property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets.

Key sources of judgement and estimation uncertainty
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
The Agency makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom
equal the related actual results. The Agency makes judgements in applying accounting policies. The estimates, assumptions and
judgements that have a significant risk of causing material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
financial statements within the next financial year are addressed below within the individual accounting policies and notes to the
accounts.
The most significant estimates made by the Agency relate to the valuation of SPS properties and the sums recorded in provisions
and contingent liabilities for staff and prisoner claims at 31 March. To assist the Agency with the estimates in valuing property the SPS
commission professionally qualified firms to undertake a full revaluation of dwellings and other buildings at five yearly intervals with a
rolling programme of valuations in the years in between.
The SPS engage the services of the Scottish Government Legal Directorate, the Department of Work and Pensions and other
legal firms to assist in preparing estimates of potential liabilities for staff and prisoner claims. The SPS also engage the services of
professional accountancy firms to assist in the estimates for PFI/PPP Contracts and other Service Concession Arrangements.

Change in Accounting Estimate
Indexation
The indexation adjustment recorded in the 2016-17 accounts is calculated as the movement between the opening index as at 31
March 2016 and the closing index as at 31 March 2017. The index applied to buildings is based on a quarterly forecast which may be
subject to change.

Property, Plant and Equipment
Title to the freehold land and buildings shown in the accounts is held in the name of the Scottish Ministers.

Dwellings and other buildings
Dwellings and other buildings are shown at fair value less subsequent depreciation. Any accumulated depreciation at the date of
revaluation is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset, and the net amount is restated to the revalued amount of the
asset.
The SPS commission professionally qualified firms to undertake a full revaluation of dwellings and other buildings at five yearly
intervals. They follow the principles set out in the RICS Red Book and value on the basis of Open Market Value, Existing Use Value,
Depreciated Replacement Cost or Discounted Cash Flow as appropriate under RICS guidance for determining fair value.
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In the intervening years, both specialised and non-specialised properties are valued on a rolling programme revaluing, on average,
four establishments each year. Appropriate indices provided by the Valuer are used to restate values in the intervening years between
full valuations. A full valuation was carried out by the Valuations Office Agency (VOA) on 31 March 2017. The normal threshold for
capitalisation of buildings is £1,000.

Plant and Equipment, Fixtures and Fittings, Motor Vehicles and Information Technology
Depreciated historic cost has been used as a proxy for the fair value of plant and equipment, fixtures and fittings, motor vehicles
and information technology. All of the assets in these categories have low values and short useful economic lives which realistically
reflect the life of the asset and a depreciation charge which provides a realistic reflection of consumption. The normal threshold for
capitalisation of assets in these categories is £1,000.

Assets under construction
Assets under construction are carried at the costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary
for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Assets under construction are transferred to either the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment or intangible assets when completed and ready for use.

Revaluation reserve
Increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of property, plant and equipment are credited to the revaluation reserve in
taxpayers’ equity. Decreases that offset previous increases of the same asset are charged against the revaluation reserve directly
in equity; all other decreases, including permanent diminutions as a result of a clear consumption of economic benefits or service
potential, are charged to the statement of comprehensive net expenditure.
Depreciation is charged to expenditure on the revalued amount of assets. An element of the depreciation therefore arises due to the
increase in valuation and is in excess of the depreciation that would be charged on the historical cost of assets. The amount relating to
this excess is a realised gain on revaluation and is transferred from the revaluation reserve to the general fund.

Depreciation
Land held under freehold is not depreciated.
Assets under construction are not depreciated until the asset under construction is capable of operating in the manner intended by
management.
Depreciation is provided on all other tangible and intangible fixed assets at rates calculated to write off the valuation, less estimated
residual values, of each asset evenly over its expected useful life. Asset lives are assessed on an asset by asset basis as follows:
Freehold buildings

Not exceeding 80 years

Buildings held under PFI/PPP contracts

Not exceeding 80 years

Fixed Plant and Equipment

Not exceeding 40 years

Fixtures and Fittings

5 years

Motor Vehicles

5 years

Moveable Plant and Equipment

5 years

Information Technology

2 years

Software

2 years

Plant and Equipment held under a finance lease

unexpired term of lease

Motor Vehicles held under Court Custody and
Prisoner Escort Service Contract

unexpired term of lease

Information Technology held under a finance lease

unexpired term of lease

The asset’s residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each statement of financial position date.
An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.
Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised in the
statement of comprehensive net expenditure.
When revalued assets are sold, the amounts included in the revaluation reserve are transferred to the general fund.
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Assets Held for Sale
A property is derecognised and held for sale under IFRS5, Non-Current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations when all of
the following requirements are met:
> It is available for immediate sale;
> A plan is in place, supported by management and steps have been taken to conclude the sale; and
> It is actively marketed and there is an expectation that the sale will be made in less than 12 months.

Assets held for sale include assets where SPS intends and expects to sell within one year from the date of classification of held for
sale. Assets classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amounts immediately prior to their classification as
held for sale and their fair value less costs to sell. Assets classified as held for sale are not subject to depreciation or amortisation.

Donated Assets
In Accordance with IAS16 Property, Plant and Equipment and the HM Treasury Financial Reporting Manual, Donated Assets are
capitalised at their fair value on receipt and this value is recognised as income and taken to the Statement of Comprehensive Net
Expenditure. The donated assets are revalued, depreciated and subject to impairment review in the same way as non-current assets.
Subsequent revaluations are taken to the revaluation reserve. Where the donator has imposed a condition that the future economic
benefits embodied in the donation are consumed as specified by the donor, or returned to them, then the receipt is treated as
deferred income.

Intangible Assets
Intangible assets are valued on a historic cost basis.
Future economic benefit has been used as the criteria on assessing whether an intangible asset meets the definition and recognition
criteria of IAS38 where assets do not generate income. IAS38 defines future economic benefit as, ‘revenue from the sale of products
or services, cost savings, or other benefits resulting from the use of the asset by the entity.’
Amortisation is applied at rates calculated to write off the cost by equal instalments over the estimated useful life.

Financial Instruments
The SPS has considered its exposure to the following risks from the use of financial instruments:-

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the funding risk to SPS that liabilities cannot be met when they fall due or can only be met at an uneconomic price.
SPS has no borrowings and relies primarily on funding from the Scottish Government for its cash requirements. SPS is therefore, not
exposed to liquidity risks.

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to SPS if a debtor or counter party fails to meet its contractual obligations and arises from the
trade receivables and other debtors.
SPS carries out appropriate credit checks on potential customers before significant sales transactions are entered into in order to
mitigate the credit risk from any single counterparty. The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying value of
trade receivables on the statement of financial position.

Market risk
Market risk is the risk to SPS that the value of an investment will decrease due to moves in market factors. SPS has no material
deposits and all material assets and liabilities are denominated in sterling. SPS is not, therefore, exposed to interest rate or currency
risk.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, cash balances held by the Government Banking
Service and other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less.

Inventories
Stock and work in progress are valued as follows:
> Finished goods are valued at the lower of cost or, where materially different, current replacement cost and net realisable value;
> Work in progress is valued at the lower of cost, including appropriate overheads, and net realisable value.
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Research and Development
Expenditure on research and development is treated as an operating cost in the year in which it is incurred.

Service Concessions and Private Finance Contracts
SPS assesses the contracts that utilise assets to determine if the contract represents a service concession arrangement under
the conditions of IFRIC 12, Service Concession Arrangements. Contracts which meet the recognition criteria are recognised in the
statement of financial position.

PFI/PPP Contracts
PFI/PPP transactions are accounted for in accordance with IFRIC 12, as adapted for the public sector context by the FReM.
The SPS has awarded Public Private Partnership (PPP) contracts, to design, construct, manage and finance prisons at HMP Kilmarnock
and HMP Addiewell. Both contracts were let for 25 year operating periods, commencing in March 1999 for HMP Kilmarnock and in
December 2008 for HMP Addiewell.
Assets and liabilities that are assessed to be on balance sheet are measured as follows:
> Where the contract is separable between the service element, the interest charge and the infrastructure asset, the asset will be

measured in accordance with IAS 17 Leases, with the service element and the interest charge recognised as incurred over the term
of the concession arrangement.
> Where there is a unitary payment stream that includes infrastructure and service elements that cannot be separated, the various

elements will be separated using estimation techniques including obtaining information from the operator or using the fair value
approach.
The SPS recognises a liability for the capital value of the contract. That liability does not include the interest charge and service
elements, which are expensed annually through the statement of comprehensive net expenditure.
Assets are subsequently measured consistently with other assets in their class using IAS16, Property, Plant and Equipment, adopting
an appropriate asset revaluation approach. Liabilities are measured using the appropriate discount rate, taking account of the
reduction arising from capital payments included in the unitary payment stream. Any revenue received by SPS is recognised in line
with IAS18, Revenue.
In both of the projects, the financial models supplied by each project operators do not separately identify a costed lifecycle
maintenance programme. SPS has therefore opted not to set aside amounts from the unitary payment as payment for lifecycle
maintenance. Instead, when the project operators replace a capital asset, the fair value of this replacement item is recognised as
property, plant and equipment, balanced by a credit to the revaluation reserve. The replaced asset’s existing value is written out of
property, plant and equipment and either impaired or debited to the revaluation reserve.
In accordance with IAS 17, contingent rentals are defined as the ‘portion of the lease payments that is not fixed in amount but is based
on the future amount of a factor that changes other than with the passage of time’. Examples of contingent rents include payments
governed by movements in future price indices. Both financial models calculate contingent rent as follows:
> The change in cash unitary charge arising from indexation is offset against the impact of applying the same indexation factor to the

real terms operating and lifecycle costs; and
> Any remaining cash difference between the change in unitary charge and the indexation factor’s effect on operating costs is charged

to contingent rent.

Other Service Concession Arrangements
The Court Custody and Prisoner Escort Service Contract meets the requirements of IFRIC 12 and are recognised in these accounts as
a service concession arrangement.
The infrastructure assets related to this contract are recognised as non-current assets. These assets are accounted for in the same
manner as other assets within the same class. The initial recognition of service concession infrastructure assets is at the Contractor’s
estimate of the assets’ fair value.
The useful economic life was determined as the shorter of the duration of the contract, or the life of the asset. The interest rate used
was derived by comparing the total payments under the contract to the element which constitutes capital repayment.
Where the SPS meets the controls test under IFRIC 12, the underlying assets are recognised on the statement of financial position.
For leased assets, the finance lease is treated according to IAS17 Leases, and the asset and corresponding liability is capitalised.
This includes the deferred residual interest which is recognised as a long term liability and reflects the liability to make future capital
payments to acquire the vehicles at the end of the contract period.
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Income
SPS accounts for income in accordance with the recognition criteria set out in IAS18 Revenue. Income is recognised when the
amounts can be reliably measured and services have been rendered and/or goods dispatched. The main sources of income for SPS
include sales from prisoner’s canteen and prisoner’s telephone system and income from sale of goods produced by prison industries.

Employee Benefits
Short-term Employee Benefits
Salaries, wages and employment-related payments are recognised in the year in which the service is received from employees. The
cost of annual leave and flexible working time entitlement earned but not taken by employees at the end of the year is recognised in
the financial statements to the extent that employees are permitted to carry-forward leave into the following year.

Pension Costs and other post-retirement benefits
Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the Principal Civil Service Pension Scheme (PCSPS) and the Civil Servant
and Other Pension Scheme (CSOPS), which are unfunded multi-employer defined benefit schemes but the SPS is unable to identify
its share of the underlying assets and liabilities. The schemes are accounted for as a defined contribution schemes under the multiemployer exemption permitted in IAS19. The SPS recognises the expected cost of these elements on a systematic and rational basis
over the period during which it benefits from employees’ services by payment to the PCSPS/CSOPS of amounts calculated on an
accruing basis. Liability for payment of future benefits is a charge on the PCSPS/CSOPS.
In respect of the defined contribution schemes, the SPS recognises the contribution payable for the year. Early severance payment
obligations are expensed in the year in which the decision of the departure is agreed. Additional pension liabilities arising from early
retirements are not funded by the scheme except where the retirement is due to ill health. The full amount of the liability for the
additional costs is charged to the outturn statement at the time the SPS commits itself to the retirement, regardless of the method of
payment.
In previous years, the SPS met the additional costs in respect of employees who retired early by paying the required amounts annually
to the PCSPS over the period between early departure and normal retirement date. The SPS provided for this in full when the early
retirement programme became binding by establishing a provision for the estimated payments.

Termination Benefits
SPS accounts for termination benefits in accordance with IAS 19 Employee benefits. Termination benefits are payable as a result of
a decision to terminate an employee’s employment before the normal retirement date, and the liability is recognised when the offer
of the benefits can no longer be withdrawn at the earlier of i) acceptance of the offer by the employee or ii) when a legal, regulatory or
contractual restriction on the ability to withdraw the offer takes effect.

Leases
Finance leases
In accordance with IAS 17 Leases, where substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of a leased asset are borne by SPS, the asset
is recorded as Property, Plant and Equipment and a corresponding liability is recorded. The value at which both are recognised is the
lower of the fair value of the asset or the present value of the minimum lease payments. Assets held under finance leases are valued at
their fair values and are depreciated over the remaining period of the lease in accordance with IFRS.
The asset and liability are recognised at the inception of the lease, and are de-recognised when the liability is discharged, cancelled
or expires. The annual rental is split between the repayment of the liability and a finance cost. The annual finance cost is calculated by
applying the implicit interest rate to the outstanding liability and is charged to interest payable in the statement of comprehensive net
expenditure.

Operating leases
Other leases, that are not finance leases, are regarded as operating leases and the rentals are charged to expenditure on a straightline basis over the term of the lease. Operating lease incentives received are added to the lease rentals and charged to expenditure
over the life of the lease.

Leases of land and buildings
Where a lease is for land and buildings, the land component is separated from the building component and the classification for each is
assessed separately. Leased land is treated as an operating lease unless title to the land is expected to transfer.
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Provisions and Contingent Liabilities
In accordance with IAS37 provisions, including provisions for staff and prisoner claims, are recognised in the statement of financial
position when the SPS has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefit will be required to settle the obligation. If the effect is material, provisions are determined by discounting the
expected, risk adjusted and future cash flows using the discount rate prescribed by HM Treasury.

Related Party Transactions
Material related party transactions are disclosed in the notes to the accounts in line with the requirements of IAS24.

Value Added Tax
The majority of services provided by the SPS fall outwith the scope of Value Added Tax (VAT). However, the manufacturing and sale of
goods to external bodies is subject to VAT on both inputs and outputs. The SPS can recover this input VAT as well as VAT on certain
contracted-out services. Income is shown in the accounts net of recoverable VAT.

Insurance
With the exception of Public Private Partnership contracts, no outside insurance is affected against fire, explosion, common law, third
party and similar risks, except where there is a statutory requirement to do so.

Third Party Assets
SPS holds as custodian monies belonging to third parties. These assets are not recognised on the Statement of Financial Position and
are disclosed within the notes to the accounts.

Segmental Reporting
The SPS currently operates three segments, namely;
> Public Prisons
> Private Prisons; and
> Court Custody and Prisoner Escort Services (CCPES)

IFRS 8 Segmental Reporting requires operating segments to be identified on the basis of internal reports about components of the
SPS that are regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision maker in order to allocate resources to the segments and assess their
performance. The SPS reports segmental information within its consolidated operating cost statements which are prepared on the
basis of its portfolios.

Accounting standards issued but not yet effective
There are new accounting standards that have been issued but have not yet been applied by the SPS in these financial statements.
The new standards that are considered relevant to SPS and the anticipated impact on the accounts are as follows:
> IFRS 16 – Leases
This standard has been created to harmonise the rules regarding leases between the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB)
and the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) in the United States. It will supersede the existing IAS 17 but will not come into
effect until January 2019. The extent to which this new standard will apply to the public sector has not been fully interpreted by the
Financial Reporting Advisory Board.
> IFRS 9 – Financial Instruments
This standard was issued in November 2014, and is effective from 1 January 2018. The adoption of this standard could change the
classification and measurement of financial assets. The interpretation for the public sector is still under consideration and the impact
has not been determined.
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2. Prior Year Adjustments
Specialised Properties Revaluations
The primary statements have been prepared on the basis of a retrospective correction to the valuations of SPS’s specialised
properties due to a historical error in the processing of revaluations in the software used to record SPS’s assets. The 31 March
valuations have historically been applied at 1 March, resulting in depreciation being incorrectly calculated. As a result, the net book
value of the specialised properties were understated which did not reflect the DVS valuations.
The error was identified during the full valuation of SPS specialised properties in 2016-17 and the financial statements have been restated.
The prior year statements have been adjusted as follows:

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE NET EXPENDITURE
for the year ended 31 March 2016
2015-16

PY Adj

Restated
2015-16

£000

£000

£000

(7,188)

0

(7,188)

Staff costs

162,951

0

162,951

Other current expenditure

159,972

(70)

159,902

Total operating expenditure

322,923

(70)

322,853

Net operating expenditure

315,735

(70)

315,665

8,022

0

8,022

323,757

(70)

323,687

2015-16

PY Adj

Restated
2015-16

£000

£000

£000

Net loss (gain) on revaluation of property, plant and equipment

(81,405)

(1,447)

(82,852)

Comprehensive net expenditure for the year

242,352

(1,517)

240,835

Income
Income from all sources
Expenditure

Finance expense
Net expenditure for the year

Other Comprehensive Net Expenditure

Items that will not be reclassified to net operating costs:
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
as at 31 March 2015
2014-15

PY Adj

Restated
2014-15

£000

£000

£000

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Other receivables

1,037,601
1,167
106

20
0
0

1,037,621
1,167
106

Total non-current assets

1,038,874

20

1,038,894

Current assets
Assets classified as held for sale

1,370

0

1,370

Inventories

2,489

0

2,489

Trade and other receivables

5,839

0

5,839

545

0

545

10,243

0

10,243

1,049,117

20

1,049,137

(35,606)

0

(35,606)

(3,772)

0

(3,772)

(39,378)

0

(39,378)

1,009,739

20

1,009,759

(97,854)

0

(97,854)

(9,685)

0

(9,685)

(107,539)

0

(107,539)

902,200

20

902,220

Cash and cash equivalents
Total current assets
Total assets
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Provisions
Total current liabilities
Total assets less net current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Other payables
Provisions
Total non-current liabilities
Total assets less total liabilities
Taxpayers’ equity and other reserves
General fund

730,179

730,179

Revaluation reserve

172,021

20

172,041

Total equity

902,200

20

902,220
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
as at 31 March 2016
2015-16

2014-15
PY Adj

2015-16
PY Adj

Restated
2015-16

£000

£000

£000

£000

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Other receivables

1,093,906
1,194
96

20
0
0

1,517
0
0

1,095,443
1,194
96

Total non-current assets

1,095,196

20

1,517

1,096,733

Current assets
Assets classified as held for sale

0

0

0

0

Inventories

2,377

0

0

2,377

Trade and other receivables

6,126

0

0

6,126

757

0

0

757

9,260

0

0

9,260

1,104,456

20

1,517

1,105,993

(27,954)

0

0

(27,954)

(4,271)

0

0

(4,271)

(32,225)

0

0

(32,225)

1,072,231

20

1,517

1,073,768

Other payables

(93,490)

0

0

(93,490)

Provisions

(10,493)

0

0

(10,493)

(103,983)

0

0

(103,983)

968,248

20

1,517

969,785

General fund

723,655

0

145

723,800

Revaluation reserve

244,593

20

1,372

245,985

Total equity

968,248

20

1,517

969,785

Cash and cash equivalents
Total current assets
Total assets
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Provisions
Total current liabilities
Total assets less net current liabilities
Non-current liabilities

Total non-current liabilities
Total assets less total liabilities
Taxpayers’ equity and other reserves
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
for the year ended 31 March 2016
2015-16

PY Adj

Restated
2015-16

£000

£000

£000

(323,757)

70

(323,687)

96

0

96

24,557

(70)

24,487

560

0

560

8,005

0

8,005

Cash flows from operating activities
Net operating cost
Notional charges
Depreciation and impairment
Loss on sale of tangible assets
Interest payable in net operating cost for financing
(Increase)/Decrease in inventories

112

0

112

(277)

0

(277)

11,125

0

11,125

1,307

0

1,307

(278,272)

0

(278,272)

(16,157)

0

(16,157)

(490)

0

(490)

852

0

852

(15,795)

0

(15,795)

From the Consolidated Fund

312,804

0

312,804

Capital element of payments in respect of finance leases and on balance sheet
PFI/PPP contracts

(10,520)

0

(10,520)

Decrease/(Increase) in trade receivables
Increase in trade payables
Use of provisions
Net cash outflow from operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of intangible assets
Proceeds of disposal of property, plant and equipment
Net cash outflow from investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities

Interest element of finance leases and on balance sheet PFI/PPP contracts

(8,005)

0

(8,005)

294,279

0

294,279

Net (decrease)/ increase in cash and cash equivalents in the period

212

0

212

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period

545

0

545

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period

757

0

757

Net financing
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3. Income from all Sources
2016-17

2015-16

£000

£000

1,088

1,064

7

8

General revenue

1,723

1,708

Income from prisoner’s canteen

4,533

4,408

7,351

7,188

Income from sales
Rental income

Income from sales includes the sale of goods produced by prison industries. General revenue includes income from the prisoner
telephone system.

4. Other Expenditure
2016-17

Restated
2015-16

£000

£000

129,997

127,587

Staff costs
   – Wages and salaries
   – Social security costs

12,766

9,074

   – Other pension costs

26,178

26,361

PFI service charges

32,987

32,484

Prisoner escort and court custody service

22,137

20,981

Repairs and maintenance

16,742

15,980

Victualling and other supplies

14,545

14,437

Other current expenditure

13,917

14,092

Heat, light, telephone etc.

10,457

11,618

Interest charges

7,465

8,013

Rates

7,378

7,150

Other staff related costs

4,225

5,708

General expenditure

3,643

3,442

Prisoner earnings

3,103

3,130

PPP/PFI contingent rent

3,336

3,026

   – Land and buildings

935

953

  – Other

409

373

0

17

24,694

24,487

34

560

103

96

3,328

1,297

10

9

338,389

330,875

Rentals under operating leases

Finance lease
Non-cash items
   – Depreciation and impairment
   – Loss on sale of assets
   – Auditors’ remuneration
   – Provisions provided for in year
   – Borrowing costs of provisions (unwinding of discount on provisions)

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

57

Further analysis of staff costs is located in the Staff Report on page 34 in the Accountability Section. Staff costs shown in this table
include costs for non-permanent staff and are net of recharges for outward secondees. Pension costs have also been adjusted for the
movement in the provision for early retirements.
Depreciation is applied to tangible, donated and intangible fixed assets. It includes £10,970k credit (2015-16 £10,925k credit), in
relation to impairments arising upon revaluation of land and buildings.
Other current expenditure includes fees paid for education contracts, £4,542k (2015-16 £4,377k) and social work costs £4,660k
(2015-16 £4,501k).
During the year SPS purchased non-audit services from its auditor, Scott Moncrieff: Due Diligence – £12k.

5. Property, Plant and Equipment
Including Donated
Assets

Land Buildings Dwellings

Motor
Vehicles

Plant &
Equip

Cost or Valuation

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

71,407

409,702

627,214

11,131

25,985

6,981

618

Additions
Completed Assets
under Construction

0

369

609

3

658

77

0

676

2,392

0

451

0

0

0

664

0

(1,115)

0

Revaluation

(3,142)

(18,225)

(26,925)

0

0

0

0

0

(48,292)

Impairment

0

2,754

(295)

0

0

0

0

(1)

2,458

(9)

(32)

(1)

0

0

0

0

(493)

(535)

0

0

0

(8)

(595)

(26)

(35)

0

(664)

68,256

395,019

600,602

11,126

26,048

7,696

583

At 1 April 2016

0

11,970

13,381

6,317

21,069

6,021

579

0

59,337

Charge

0

12,247

18,802

1,385

2,027

833

16

0

35,310

Revaluation

0

(19,192)

(27,904)

0

0

0

0

0

(47,096)

Impairment

0

(4,680)

(4,271)

0

0

0

0

0

(8,951)

At 1 April 2016

Reclassification
Disposals
At 31 March 2017

Comp Fixtures
Equip & Fittings

AUC

Total

£000

£000

1,742 1,154,780

809 1,110,139

Depreciation

Disposals

0

0

0

(8)

(554)

(26)

(35)

0

(623)

At 31 March 2017

0

345

8

7,694

22,542

6,828

560

0

37,977

Carrying Value at
31 March 2017

68,256

394,674

600,594

3,432

3,506

868

23

809 1,072,162

Carrying Value at
31 March 2016

71,407

397,732

613,833

4,814

4,916

960

39

1,742 1,095,443

68,256

351,246

518,971

69

3,506

868

23

809

943,748

Asset financing:
Owned
Finance Leased

0

0

0

3,363

0

0

0

0

3,363

On-balance sheet
PFI contracts

0

43,428

81,623

0

0

0

0

0

125,051

Carrying Value at
31 March 2017

68,256

394,674

600,594

3,432

3,506

868

23

809 1,072,162
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Including Donated
Assets

Land

Cost or Valuation

£000

£000

70,226

At 1 April 2015
Additions
Completed Assets
under Construction

Buildings Dwellings
Restated Restated

Motor
Vehicles

Plant &
Equip

Comp Fixtures
Equip & Fittings

AUC

Total
Restated

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

398,754

606,248

11,133

25,773

8,309

634

33

775

787

10

914

288

0

729

3,536

0

4,862

4,934

0

0

0

0

(9,796)

0

11,251 1,132,328

Revaluation

5,672

1,968

16,875

0

0

0

0

0

24,515

Impairment

(24)

3,400

(1,630)

0

0

0

0

(442)

1,304

(4,500)

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

(4,500)

0

(2,403)

Transfers to other bodies
Disposals
At 31 March 2016

0

(57)

0

(12)

(702)

(1,616)

(16)

71,407

409,702

627,214

11,131

25,985

6,981

618

1,742 1,154,780

Depreciation
At 1 April 2015

0

23,844

39,889

4,904

19,188

6,306

576

0

94,707

Charge

0

11,607

18,026

1,425

2,541

1,331

19

0

34,949

Revaluation

0

(20,926)

(37,411)

0

0

0

0

0

(58,337)

Impairment

0

(2,498)

(7,123)

0

0

0

0

0

(9,621)

Disposals

0

(57)

0

(12)

(660)

(1,616)

(16)

0

(2,361)

0

59,337

At 31 March 2016

0

11,970

13,381

6,317

21,069

6,021

579

Carrying Value at
31 March 2016

71,407

397,732

613,833

4,814

4,916

960

39

1,742 1,095,443

Carrying Value at
31 March 2015

70,226

374,910

566,359

6,229

6,585

2,003

58

11,251 1,037,621

71,407

353,915

530,692

137

4,916

960

39

1,742

963,808

Finance Leased

0

0

0

4,677

0

0

0

0

4,677

On-balance sheet
PFI contracts

0

43,817

83,141

0

0

0

0

0

126,958

Carrying Value at
31 March 2016

71,407

397,732

613,833

4,814

4,916

960

39

Asset financing:
Owned
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All specialised properties were valued by the Valuation Office Agency at 31 March 2017 at their depreciated replacement cost (DRC).
The total value of these properties at that date was £1,057,133k.
Included under land, building and dwellings are the properties for the Public Private Partnerships (PPPs) at HMP Kilmarnock and HMP
Addiewell. Both of these specialised assets were valued by the Valuation Office Agency at 31 March 2017 at their DRC. The total value
of these properties at that date was £126,691k. At the end of these 25 year contracts, the assets revert to SPS at nil cost.
The court custody and prisoner escort service is included within Motor Vehicles; the contract is accounted for in the same manner
as other assets with the same class. The underlying value of the infrastructure assets are the contractor’s estimate of fair value. In
accordance with IFRIC12 the infrastructure assets related to this contract are recognised as non-current assets.
The Scottish Government’s Infrastructure and Investment Plan 2015 (revised March 2017) includes details of prison development
plans over the next few years. As a result of the planned modernisation of the estate, the remaining lives for the buildings, which
are scheduled for demolition and closure, have been adjusted to reflect the planned period to demolition and closure using the
development plans to 31 March 2017. The total depreciation charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure is shown
in Note 4.
There is no requirement in the FReM for donated assets to be separately disclosed. The donated asset is included within Buildings.
The donated asset comprises a Visitors’ Reception at HMP Edinburgh provided to the SPS in March 2000 with the restriction that it be
leased to the developer, for a peppercorn rent for a period of 35 years, to be used solely as a Visitors’ Reception Centre. The net book
value at 31 March 2017 was £1,189k.

5.1 Assets Held for Sale
2016-17

2015-16

£000

£000

0

1,370

Property, Plant and Equipment
At 1 April
Reclassification
Disposals
At 31 March

42

0

0

(1,370)

42

0

Reclassified assets relate to garage buildings and land at HMP Grampian.
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6. Intangible Assets
Information
Technology

Software

AUC

Total

£000

£000

£000

£000

3,497

2,875

774

7,146

0

0

8

8

Cost
At 1 April 2016
Additions
Completed AUC

277

295

(572)

0

Impairment

0

0

(439)

(439)

Reclassifications

0

0

493

493

Disposals

0

(1)

0

(1)

3,774

3,169

264

7,207

3,228

2,724

0

5,952

150

204

0

354

0

(1)

0

(1)

3,378

2,927

0

6,305

Carrying Value as at 31 March 2017

396

242

264

902

Carrying Value as at 31 March 2016

269

151

774

1,194

Asset financing: Owned

396

242

264

902

Information
Technology

Software

AUC

Total

£000

£000

£000

£000

3,321

3,496

479

7,296

137

19

334

490

39

0

(39)

0

0

(640)

0

(640)

3,497

2,875

774

7,146

3,091

3,038

0

6,129

137

326

0

463

0

(640)

0

(640)

3,228

2,724

0

5,952

Carrying Value as at 31 March 2016

269

151

774

1,194

Carrying Value as at 31 March 2015

230

458

479

1,167

Asset financing: Owned

269

151

774

1,194

At 31 March 2017
Amortisation
At 1 April 2016
Charge
Disposals
At 31 March 2017

Cost
At 1 April 2015
Additions
Completed AUC
Disposals
At 31 March 2016
Amortisation
At 1 April 2015
Charge
Disposals
At 31 March 2016
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7. Financial Instruments
As the cash requirements of the SPS are met through the spending review process, financial instruments play a more limited role
in creating and managing risk than in a non public sector body. The majority of financial instruments relate to contracts to buy nonfinancial items in line with the SPS’s expected purchase and usage requirements and the SPS is therefore exposed to little credit,
liquidity or market risk.

8. Impairment Analysis
2016-17

Restated
2015-16

£000

£000

Property, Plant and Equipment
440

1,451

Impairment reversal

(11,410)

(12,376)

Revaluation reserve

13,728

1,483

2,758

(9,442)

Impairment charge

Total

The impairment reversal and charge are reflective of the properties valued at the 31 March 2017 and the application of indexation to
the remaining properties at that date. This resulted in a net impairment reversal of £11,410k.
Impairment reversals of £11,410k represent reversals of impairments charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure
(SOCNE) in previous years; the most significant reversal is HMP Glenochil (£9,255k).
The amounts taken through the revaluation reserve reflect the downward valuation of the land sites at HMP Barlinnie, HMP Dumfries
and HMP Perth.
The impairment of £439k charged to the SOCNE relates to costs associated with the failed pilot of an Electronic Procurement system,
which was brought forward as an Asset Under Construction from prior years.

9. Inventories
2016-17

2015-16

£000

£000

The main categories of stock held are:
1,173

1,181

Works, estates and locks

805

795

Industries raw materials, work in progress and finished goods for resale

859

863

Provision for obsolete stock – specific

(96)

(6)

Provision for obsolete stock – general

0

(456)

2,741

2,377

Consumables
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10. Trade Receivables and Other Current Assets
Analysis by Type
2016-17

2015-16

£000

£000

Recoverable VAT

3,229

4,919

Trade receivables

176

155

Other receivables

349

318

Amounts due within one year:

Prepayments and accrued income

2,054

734

5,808

6,126

119

96

2016-17

2015-16

£000

£000

Amounts due after more than one year:
Other receivables

11. Cash and Cash Equivalents

757

545

(125)

212

632

757

Government Banking Service

444

582

Commercial banks

137

136

51

39

632

757

Balance as at 1 April
Net change in cash and cash equivalents
Balance as at 31 March
The following balances at 31 March were held at:

Cash in hand
Balance at 31 March
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12. Trade Payables and Other Current Liabilities
Analysis by Type:
2016-17

2015-16

£000

£000

3,088

2,711

Amounts due within one year:
Other taxation and social security
Trade payables
Accruals and deferred income
Other payables
Amounts due to Justice Department
PFI/PPP and other service concession arrangements <1 year

2,950

3,584

26,822

13,501

2,881

3,386

632

757

4,385

4,015

40,758

27,954

88,105

92,490

954

954

Amounts due after more than one year:
PFI/PPP and other service concession arrangements >1 year
Deferred residual interest
Other accruals

48

46

89,107

93,490

The deferred residual interest of £954k (2015-16 £954k) relates to the residual value of vehicles under the Court Custody and Prison
Escort Service concession contract which revert to the lessor for nil consideration at the end of the contract.
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13. Provisions for Liabilities and Charges
2016-17

Balance at 1 April

£000

£000

Prisoner
Claims

Injury
Benefit

2016-17

2016-17

2016-17

2016-17

2015-16

£000

£000

£000

£000

Dilapidation Demolition
Costs
Costs

£000

Other
Charges

Total

Total

3,014

9,008

1,797

185

760

14,764

13,457

665

2,098

19

1,528

1,086

5,396

3,776

(483)

(438)

0

0

(432)

(1,353)

(1,428)

Provided in the year
Provisions utilised in the year

2016-17

0

10

0

0

0

10

9

Provisions not required written back

(473)

0

(43)

0

(199)

(715)

(1,050)

Balance at 31 March

2,723

10,678

1,773

1,713

1,215

18,102

14,764

2016-17

2016-17

2016-17

2016-17

2016-17

2016-17

2015-16

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

Prisoner
Claims

Injury
Benefit

Dilapidation Demolition
Costs
Costs

Other
Charges

Total

Total

2,723

460

6,264

4,271

Unwinding of discount

Analysis of expected timing of discounted flows

Not later than one year

1,773

150

1,158

Later than one year and not later than
five years

0

1,829

0

1,563

57

3,449

3,588

Later than five years

0

8,389

0

0

0

8,389

6,905

Balance at 31 March

2,723

10,678

1,773

1,713

1,215

18,102

14,764

Prisoner Claims
A number of historical claims brought by prisoners which concerned prison conditions remain in the courts. There are various reasons
for this including the withdrawal of the Solicitors from the claim. These have been reported in previous Annual Reports. A number of
other recent convention rights claims have been lodged in court and provision has been made for these. The majority of these relate
to Articles 3, 5(4) and 8 of the European Convention of Human Rights.
Section 14 of the Scotland Act 2012 repealed the Convention Rights Proceedings (Amendment) (Scotland) Act 2009 and amended
the Scotland Act 1998 to provide a one year time limit for convention rights claims similar to that contained in the Human Rights Act
1998. This means that a convention rights claim brought against Scottish Ministers must be brought against Scottish Ministers within
one year unless a court or tribunal considers it ‘equitable having regard to all circumstances’ to allow a claim out with this time limit.

Dilapidation Costs
Dilapidation costs are in respect of Calton House which become payable on expiry of the lease in October 2017.

Injury Benefits
Injury Benefits include estimates of amounts payable to former employees for loss of earnings under the Civil Service Injury Benefit
Scheme.

Demolition Costs
Also included within provisions are amounts for demolition works on the site of HMP & YOI Cornton Vale associated with the
development of the Women’s National Facility.

Other Charges
Other charges include estimates of amounts payable for staff compensation and related costs and early retirement costs.
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14. Commitments under Leases
Operating Leases
Total future minimum lease payments under operating leases are given in the table below for each of the following periods:
Obligations under operating leases for the following periods comprise:
2016-17

2015-16

£000

£000

17

31

0

17

17

48

375

644

0

375

375

1,019

Not later than one year

699

684

Later than one year and not later than five years

758

594

1,457

1,278

Land
Not later than one year
Later than one year and not later than five years
Buildings
Not later than one year
Later than one year and not later than five years
Other
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15. Commitments under PFI Contracts and Other Service Concession Arrangements
The total amount charged in the Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure in respect of the service element of on-balance sheet
PFI and other service concession transactions was £58,460k (2015-16 £56,491k). Total future obligations under on-balance sheet PFI
and other service concession arrangements are given in the table below for each of the following periods:
Minimum lease payments:
2016-17

2015-16

£000

£000

70,145

68,523

Due later than one year and not later than five years

226,597

244,488

Due later than five years

564,558

616,812

861,300

929,823

Less interest element

(69,973)

(77,431)

Present value

791,327

852,392

2016-17

2015-16

£000

£000

58,672

57,050

Due later than one year and not later than five years

187,385

203,152

Due later than five years

452,780

495,685

Total service elements due in future periods

698,837

755,887

Due within one year

Service elements due in future periods, included above, are:

Due within one year

PFI Contracts
The SPS has awarded Public Private Partnership (PPP) contracts, to design, construct, manage and finance prisons at HMP Kilmarnock
and HMP Addiewell. Both contracts were let for 25 year operating periods, commencing in March 1999 for HMP Kilmarnock and in
December 2008 for HMP Addiewell. Both contracts are treated as on balance sheet in accordance with IFRIC 12, Service Concession
Arrangements. The minimum lease payments that SPS is committed to make over the remainder of the respective contract periods
are included in the above table in respect of HMP Kilmarnock and HMP Addiewell. The annual payments will vary over the remaining life
of each contract in accordance with the specified indexation and unitary charge mechanisms. The capital liability for HMP Kilmarnock
is now nil, however, payments for the service element continue to the end of the contract.

Other Service Concession Arrangements
In March 2011, the SPS awarded a contract for Court Custody and Prisoner Escort service to G4S. The contract was let for a seven year
period with an option to extend for a further three years. The service commenced in January 2012. The vehicles provided with the
service are treated as on balance sheet in accordance with IFRIC 12, Service Concession Arrangements. The minimum lease payments
that SPS is committed to make over the remainder of the respective contract periods are included in the above table. The annual
payments will vary over the remaining life of the contract in accordance with the specified indexation and unitary charge mechanisms.
In the event of termination of these contracts, in accordance with Scottish Government guidance, the SPS has committed to pay
certain amounts to the contractor according to defined formulae in the respective contracts. The specific value of the termination
sum would depend on the reason for termination and the timing in relation to the contract expiry date.
A copy of the contracts for HMP Kilmarnock, HMP Addiewell and Court Custody and Prisoner Escort Services are available on the SPS
website www.sps.gov.uk.
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16. Capital Commitments
Contracted capital commitments at 31 March not otherwise included in these accounts:
2016-17

2015-16

£000

£000

559

78

2016-17

2015-16

£000

£000

Prisoner Claims

3,419

803

Other Charges

3,946

240

7,365

1,043

Property, Plant and Equipment

17. Contingent Liabilities
The Agency has the following contingent liabilities:

Contingent liabilities for prisoner claims have been included in respect of prisoner compensation and expenses for potential liability in
a number of cases where challenges have been made against SPS but which await court consideration or decisions of higher courts.
Other charges include potential additional payments of £1,000 to prison officers and operational first line managers in pay ranges C, D
and E subject to progress and continued commitment to deliver the future operating model for SPS.

18. Notional Charges
The following notional charge has been included in the accounts:
2016-17

2015-16

£000

£000

Statutory audit services

103

96

Total auditor’s remuneration

103

96

The audit fee is a notional charge, as notified to us by our auditors, Scott Moncrieff.

19. Key Financial Target
The annual average cost per prisoner place, which excludes capital charges, exceptional payments and the cost of the Court Custody
and Prisoner Escort contract, was £35,325 (2015-16 £34,399).
For information purposes, the actual annual average cost per prisoner place, calculated on a resource accounting basis (including
depreciation and impairment charges), in 2016-17 was £38,370 (2015-16 £37,331).
The actual annual average cost per prisoner place including exceptional payments in 2016-17 was £35,301 (2015-16 £34,302).
Exceptional payments include charges/release of provisions for prisoner compensation and related costs.

20. Related Party Transactions
The SPS is an Executive Agency of the Scottish Government. The Scottish Government is regarded as a related party with which the
SPS has various material transactions during the year. In 2016-17, none of the Board Members, members of key management staff or
other related parties has undertaken any material transactions with the SPS.
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21. Third Party Assets
At 31 March 2017 the SPS operated bank accounts holding funds in respect of prisoners monies and common good funds. The
balances on these accounts are held on behalf of prisoners and are therefore not included in the financial statements. The value of the
funds held in these accounts are set out in the tables below.

21.1 Prisoners’ Funds
2016-17

2015-16

£000

£000

802

744

10,926

15,457

(10,866)

(15,399)

862

802

2016-17

2015-16

£000

£000

210

205

Balance as at 1 April
Funds paid in during the year
Funds paid out during the year
Balance as at 31 March

21.2 Common Good Fund

Balance as at 1 April
Funds paid in during the year
Funds paid out during the year
Balance as at 31 March

543

541

(558)

(536)

195

210

The Common Good Fund in each establishment exists for the benefit of the prisoners in custody at that establishment.

22. Analysis of Net Expenditure by Segment
The SPS currently operates three segments, namely:
> Public Prisons;
> Private Prisons; and
> Court Custody and Prisoner Escort Services (CCPES).

The SPS is legally required to deliver custodial services for all those sent to it by the courts. During 2016-17 there were thirteen publicly
managed prisons and two privately-managed prisons. The location of each of the establishments is listed on Appendix 1. SPS agrees a
service framework with each public sector prison and manages private sector providers of prisons and custodial services under contract
arrangements. Copies of the services agreements with the publicly managed prisons and contracts with the privately managed providers
of custodial services are available on the SPS website www.sps.gov.uk.
In March 2011, SPS awarded a contract to G4S and Justice Services (UK) Ltd. The contract commenced in January 2012. The contract
itself covers a range of prisoner transport and security related services which are delivered to a number of agencies, namely:
> SPS;
> Scottish Court Service;
> Police Scotland; and
> The State Hospital and other NHS secure Units.

Restated
2015-16

2016-17
Public
Prisons

Private
Prisons

CCPES

Total

Public
Prisons

Private
Prisons

CCPES

Total

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

Net operating cost

272,578

36,323

22,137

331,038

267,196

35,510

20,981

323,687

Non-current assets

944,769

125,051

3,363 1,073,183

965,098

126,958

4,677

1,096,733
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23. Events after the Reporting Period
In accordance with the requirements of IAS10, events after the reporting period are considered up to the date on which the
accounts are authorised for issue.

Extension of the lease in respect of Calton House
On 5 June 2017, the lease for Calton House was extended for a period of up to five years. The Accounting Officer has concluded
that the impact on the financial statements would be to increase the amount charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Net
Expenditure for the provision for dilapidation costs by £259k. The carrying value of the liability for the dilapidation provision in the
Statement of Financial Position would increase by £259k and would become a non-current liability with the costs being payable on
expiry of the lease in October 2022.

In addition, SPS commitments under leases for land and buildings would be as follows:
2016-17
£000

Land
Not later than one year



31

Later than one year and not later than five years



127

Later than five years



18
176



Buildings
Not later than one year



652

Later than one year and not later than five years



2,664

Later than five years



389
3,706
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APPENDIX TO THE ACCOUNTS

SCOTTISH PRISON SERVICE
DIRECTION BY THE SCOTTISH MINISTERS
in accordance with section 19(4) of the Public Finance and Accountability (Scotland) Act 2000
1. The statement of accounts for the financial year ended 31 March 2006 and subsequent years shall comply with the accounting
principles and disclosure requirements of the edition of the Government Financial Reporting Manual (FReM) which is in force for the
year for which the statement of accounts are prepared.
2. The accounts shall be prepared so as to give a true and fair view of the income and expenditure, recognised gains and losses, and
cash flows for the financial year, and of the state of affairs as at the end of the financial year.
3. This direction shall be reproduced as an appendix to the statement of accounts. The direction given on 29 March 2001 is hereby revoked.

Signed by the authority of the Scottish Ministers
Dated

17 January 2006
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APPENDIX 1
LOCATION OF ESTABLISHMENTS
Scotland’s Prisons
01
02
03
04
05
06
07
08

Addiewell
Barlinnie
Castle Huntly
Cornton Vale
Dumfries
Edinburgh
Glenochil
Grampian

09
10
11
12
13
14
15
16

Greenock
Headquarters
Inverness
Kilmarnock
Low Moss
Perth
Polmont
Shotts

11

08

14
04
09

13
02

07
15 10
01 06
16

12

05
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APPENDIX 2
AVERAGE DAILY POPULATION AND MAXIMUM NUMBER BY PENAL ESTABLISHMENT: 2016-17
AVERAGE DAILY POPULATION1
Male

Female

DAILY MAXIMUMS2
Total

Male

Female

Total

Establishment
Addiewell
Barlinnie

699

–

699

710

–

710

1,165

–

1,165

1,281

–

1,281

–

120

120

–

188

188

Cornton Vale
Dumfries

172

–

172

181

–

181

Edinburgh

763

86

848

804

113

911

Glenochil

630

–

630

655

–

655

Grampian

379

44

423

413

50

460

Greenock

195

54

249

202

59

260

Inverness

117

–

117

133

2

133

Kilmarnock

499

–

499

507

–

507

Low Moss

750

–

750

775

–

775

Open Estate

204

–

204

224

–

224

Perth

621

–

621

659

–

659

Shotts

533

–

533

540

–

540

24

24

6

6

Young Offenders Institutions3
Cornton Vale

–

8

8

Grampian

–

4

4

Polmont
Total

3

458

51

509

515

104

587

7,185

366

7,552

7,386

409

7,763

Source:

Notes:

Data are based on the Scottish Prison
Service PR2 information management
system archived aggregate tables.
Figures published prior to 2012-13 were
from datasets managed by Scottish
Government Justice Analytical Services,
but it has not been possible to replicate
this analysis since 2011-12 due to ongoing
technical issues. The most notable
difference between the two data sources
is that the figures shown in this annual
report do not include prisoners classified
as unlawfully at large.

1. Components may not add to totals due
to rounding.

4. During 2016, a number of women
were transferred from Cornton Vale to
Polmont as a result of refurbishments.

2. The figures in these columns cannot
be added to produce a total maximum
number as the individual establishment
figures relate to different days during
the year.
3. A small number of persons aged 21 or
over may be held in young offender
institutions and small number of
young persons under 21 may be held
in adult prisons if warranted by special
circumstances, such as proximity to
courts for remand prisoners.
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APPENDIX 3
AVERAGE DAILY POPULATION IN ESTABLISHMENTS BY TYPE OF CUSTODY: 2016-17
Remand: sub total

1,370

Persons under sentence: sub total
Under four years

3,331

Four years and over (including life sentences and lifer recalls)
Total

Source:

Notes:

Data are based on the Scottish Prison
Service PR2 information management
system archived aggregate tables. Figures
published in annual reports prior to 201213 were based on datasets managed by
Scottish Government Justice Analytical
Services, but it has not been possible to
replicate this analysis since 2011-12 due
to on-going technical issues. The most
notable difference between the two data
sources is that the figures shown in this
annual report do not include prisoners
classified as unlawfully at large. The
classification of long-term determinate
prisoners recalled from licence is also
different between the two data sources:
these are classified as long-termers in
the Scottish Government statistics as
they are still subject to parole procedures.
On PR2, these prisoners will be classified
as short-termers if the recalculated
sentence on recall is less than four years.

Components may not add to totals due to
rounding. Remand figures include a small
number of persons awaiting deportation
as these are classified as untried on
PR2. The way the data are held on the
PR2 aggregate tables does not allow an
accurate breakdown by sentence and age.
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APPENDIX 4
ABSCONDS AND FAILURES TO RETURN 2016-17
Absconds and Failures to Return – 2016-17
Open Estate

Total

Abscond

4

4

Failure to Return

9

9

13

13

Total
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APPENDIX 5
BREACHES OF DISCIPLINE AND OUTCOME IN PENAL ESTABLISHMENTS BY SEX AND AGE: 2016-17
Adults
Male

Average daily population
Breaches of discipline
Disobeying a lawful order
Possessing an unauthorised/prohibited article/quantity of an article
Using threatening/abusive/insulting words or behaviour
Fighting
Destroying or damaging property
Administering, or allowing to be administered, a controlled drug to oneself
Assault
Intentionally or recklessly endangering the health or personal safety of
others
Disobeying a rule or regulation
Unauthorised absence from or presence in any part of the establishment
Intentionally refusing to work or failing to work properly
Smoking in an area where smoking is not permitted
Consuming/taking/injecting/ingesting/inhaling or concealing an
unauthorised or prohibited substance
Attempting/inciting/assisting to commit/attempt to commit any of the above
Taking (improperly) any article
Intentionally obstructing any person, other than a prisoner, in the course
of their work
Sale or delivery of an unauthorised article
Arson
Being disrespectful to any officer, worker or visitor
Sale or delivery of an article allowed only for prisoners’ own use
Committing an indecent or obscene act
Failing to return from temporary release or comply with a condition of
such release
Denying an officer access to any part of the prison
Failing without reasonable excuse to open mouth for a visual examination
Escaping or absconding from custody
Detains any person against their will
Breaches of discipline: total
Punishments awarded
Forfeiture of privileges
Stoppage/deduction from earnings or other cash
Caution
Confinement to cell
Forfeiture of other entitlements
Punishments awarded: total
Breaches of discipline per head of average prison population

Young Offenders

Female

Male

All

Female

Male

Female

6,785

350

400

16

7,185

366

4,979
3,091
1,964
1,150
820
1,079
708

187
184
243
98
83
46
82

373
237
198
386
332
37
261

17
8
19
5
8
2
2

5,352
3,328
2,162
1,536
1,152
1,116
969

204
192
262
103
91
48
84

401
427
368
288
274

38
35
18
19
23

84
13
28
55
24

5
6
3
2
–

485
440
396
343
298

43
41
21
21
23

162
119
117

19
18
16

10
27
12

3
2
–

172
146
129

22
20
16

88
87
44
56
54
44

6
8
7
13
9
5

23
6
27
2
2
1

2
–
–
1
–
–

111
93
71
58
56
45

8
8
7
14
9
5

22
15
10
2
1
16,370

1
–
2
–
–
1,160

–
–
–
1
–
2,139

–
22
–
15
1
10
–
3
–
1
86 18,509

1
–
3
–
–
1,246

14,834
10,942
2,011
1,511
159
29,457
2

639
523
142
105
9
1,418
3

2,338
1,990
96
326
17
4,767
5

56 17,172
15 12,932
1 2,107
18 1,837
–
176
90 34,224
5
3

695
538
143
123
9
1,508
3

Source:
Data are derived from the Scottish Prison Service PR2 information management system archived aggregate tables.
Notes:
It is possible for more than one punishment to be awarded for one breach of discipline, and conversely one punishment may be given for several
breaches of discipline. Components may not add to total due to rounding. Changes to prison rules were implemented during 2012, headings may
therefore differ slightly from previous years. Headings have been reordered and some have been combined in the interests of clarity.

APPENDIX 5

77

APPENDIX 6
STAFF IN POST
Staff in Post
As at 31 March 2017 there were 4,568 staff in post.
Total

Full-time

Part-time

Disabled
(self-declared)

Female

1,330

1,173

157

95

Male

3,238

2,954

284

274

SPS Board (which includes all senior civil servants within SPS)
As at March 2017

Chief Executive

Directors

Non-Executive
Directors

Total

Female

0

2

2

4

Male

1

3

2

6

Staff in Post: Age Groups
As at March 2017

16-24

25-34

35-44

45-54

55-64

Over 65

Total

Female

131

448

312

314

122

3

1,330

Male

94

576

444

1,352

739

33

3,238

Staff in Post: Ethnicity
As at March 2017
Ethnicity

Total

Arab Scottish

<5

Asian Other

<5

Black African

<5

Black Other

<5

British African

<5

British Asian Other

<5

British Pakistani

<5

Indian

<5

Mixed Other

<5

Mixed White and Asian

<5

Mixed White and Black Caribbean

<5

Not Advised

2,434

Other Ethnic Group

<5

Pakistani

<5

Prefer not to Disclose

523

Scottish Pakistani

<5

White

441

White English

72

White Gypsy Traveller

<5

White Irish

9

White Northern Irish

14

White Other

10

White Scottish

1,038

White Southern Irish

<5

White Welsh

<5
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APPENDIX 6 (cont’d)
STAFF NUMBERS AND RECRUITMENT
Leavers: Age Groups
As at March 2017

16-24

25-34

35-44

45-54

55-64

Over 65

Total

Female

16

27

14

11

17

2

87

Male

16

27

20

31

59

15

168

Recruitment
Appointed
2016-2017

Male

Female

171

85

86

Ethnic Origin
British Pakistani

<5

Not Advised

127

Prefer not to Disclose

19

White

<5

White English

<5

White Other

<5

White Scottish

20

Disabled
(self-declared)

Part-time/
Job share

<5

9

Recruitment: Age Groups
As at March 2017

16-24

25-34

35-44

45-54

55-64

Over 65

Total

Female

37

27

13

8

1

0

86

Male

15

36

16

11

6

1

85

Exceptions
Temporary Appointments

Secondments

Re-appointment of Former Civil Servants

<5

6

7
There were no exceptions in the following Categories:

Schemes for Unemployed and Disabled People; Organisations transferred in (Non-TUPE)
Extended Ministerial Offices; Organisations transferred in (TUPE)
Northern Ireland Civil Servants; Conversion to Permanency
Staff from other Public Bodies

Promotion
The following personnel were promoted:
Promoted
2016-2017

Female

Male

Ethnic Origin

85

51

34

Not Advised

42

Prefer not to Disclose

10

White

14

White English

<5

White Scottish

17
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Disabled
(self-declared)

Part-time/
Job Share

<5

0

79

APPENDIX 7
PARLIAMENTARY ACCOUNTABILITY (1 April 2016 – 31 March 2017)
Ministerial Correspondence
No. Received

No. of Replies issued
within 15 working days

No. of Replies issued
outwith target date

MSP’s letters for Ministerial reply

9

8

1

MSP’s letters for Chief Executive reply

90

89

1

Total (2016-17)

99

97 (98%)

2 (2%)

Total (2015-16)

86

83 (96.5%)

3 (3.5%)

Total

Ministerial Replies

Chief Executive’s Replies

Year ended 31 March 2017

79

0

79

Year ended 31 March 2016

76

3

73

Category of Response

Scottish Parliamentary Questions
Year
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APPENDIX 8a
KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS*
2016-17

2015-16

KPI1a

Extreme Risk Escapes

0

0

KPI1b

Escapes at other supervision level

0

0

KPI2a

Serious Prisoner on Staff Assaults

5

4

KPI2b

Minor and No Injury Prisoner on Staff Assaults

193

202

KPI2c

Serious Prisoner on Prisoner Assaults

74

79

KPI2d

Minor and No Injury Prisoner on Prisoner Assaults

2,136

1,971

KPI3a

Purposeful Activity Hours

6,785,800

7,045,779

KPI3b

Average Purposeful activity Hours per week per Convicted prisoner

22

23

KPI4a

% of education classes spent delivering literacy skills

37.5%

32.5%

KPI4b

% of education classes spent delivering numeracy skills

17.0%

15.0%

KPI5a

Vocational and Employment Related Qualifications

20,311

19,893

KPI5b

Vocational and Employment Related Qualifications at SCQF level 5 or above

2,465

2,472

KPI6

Employability Prospects Increased

-

-

KPI7

Reduced Substance Abuse

46

46

KPI8

% of ICM Case Conferences with CJSW in attendance

89.8%

88.4%

KPI9

Average Annual Cost Per Prisoner Place**

35,325

34,399

KPI10

Reducing Carbon Emissions***

-

-

*An explanation of Operational Performance Indicators is shown at Appendix 8b.
**The average cost per prisoner place excludes capital charges, exceptional payments and the cost of the Court Custody and Prisoner Escort Contract. SPS publishes cost
and performance information on the latter separately on its website.
***A separate report is published on our website www.sps.gov.uk.
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APPENDIX 8b
WHAT DO THE OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE INDICATORS MEAN?
Key Outcomes

KPI

Definition

Related National Outcomes

Related National
Indicators

SPS maintains secure custody and good order
We live our lives safe
from crime, disorder
and danger.
Our public services
are high quality,
continually improving,
efficient and
responsive to local
people’s needs.

1. Escapes

a)
b)
c)
d)

Extreme risk.
All other supervision levels.
Absconds.
Incidents of failure to return.

2. Assaults

a) Serious prisoner on staff assaults.
b) Serious prisoner on prisoner
assaults.
c) Other prisoner on staff assaults.
d) Other prisoner on prisoner
assaults.

Reduce re-conviction
rates

Reduce re-conviction
rates

SPS cares for prisoners with humanity and offers them appropriate opportunities

We live our lives safe
from crime, disorder
and danger.
Our public services
are high quality,
continually improving,
efficient and
responsive to local
people’s needs.

We realise our full economic potential Reduce reconviction
with more and better employment
rates. Improve levels of
opportunities for our people.
Educational attainment.
Increase Physical
We are better educated, more
Activity
skilled and successful, renowned for
our research and innovation.

3. Purposeful
Activity Hours

Any supervised and/or structured
activity that contributes to reducing
re-offending.

4. Increase in
Literacy and
Numeracy

a) The percentage of prisoner
Our young people are successful
learning hours delivered with a
primary aim of developing literacy learners, confident individuals,
effective contributors and responsible
skills.
citizens.
b) The percentage of prisoner
We live longer, healthier lives.
learning hours delivered with a
We have improved the life chances
primary aim of developing
for children, young people and
numeracy skills.
families at risk.

Reduce reconviction
rates. Improve levels of
Educational attainment.

SPS maintains secure custody and good order

We live our lives safe
from crime, disorder
and danger.
Our public services
are high quality,
continually improving,
efficient and
responsive to local
people’s needs

5. Vocational
qualifications

a) Number of vocational and
employment-related qualifications.
b) Number of vocational and
employment-related qualifications
at SCQF level 5 or above.

6. Increase in
employability

The percentage of prisoners
accessing JobCentre Plus’
pre-release service who move into
employment, education or training
within 13 weeks of release.

7. Reduced or
stabilised drug
misuse

The number of prisoners testing
positive on entry compared with the
number testing positive on exit.

8. Integrated Case
Management
case
conferences
with social work
contributions

We realise our full economic
potential with more and better
employment opportunities for our
people.
We are better educated, more
skilled and successful, renowned for
our research and innovation.
Our young people are successful
learners, confident individuals,
effective contributors and
responsible citizens.

We live longer, healthier lives.
The percentage of case conferences
We have improved the life chances
held for prisoners to be released to
for children, young people and
Scotland where the community
families at risk.
Criminal Justice Social Worker
attended.

Reduce reconviction
rates. Improve levels of
Educational attainment.
Improving the skill profile
of the population.
Reduce reconviction
rates. Improving the skill
profile of the population.
Reduce reconviction
rates. Reducing the
number of individuals
with problem drug use.
Reduce reconviction
rates. Reducing crime
victimisation rates.

SPS offers value for money to the taxpayer
Our public services
are high quality,
continually improving,
efficient and
responsive to local
people’s needs.

9. Average annual
cost per
prisoner place

We value and enjoy our
built and natural
environment and
protect it and enhance
it for future
generations.

10. Reducing
Carbon
Emissions

Improve people’s
perceptions of the
quality of public services.

From 2010, a 20% reduction in
carbon emissions by 2015 with
anticipated savings over the 5 year
plan equating to 45,335 tonnes of
CO2, and £8.1m.

We reduce the local and global
environmental impact of our
consumption and production.

Reduce Scotland’s
Carbon Footprint.
Reduce waste
generated.
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APPENDIX 9
COURT CUSTODY AND PRISONER ESCORT SERVICE
CORE VOLUMES
(Excluding Bail to Establishment)
Apr-16

May-16

Jun-16

Jul-16

Aug-16

Sep-16

Oct-16

Nov-16

Dec-16

Jan-17

Feb-17

Police Station to Court

6,070

6,754

6,212

5,950

6,726

5,471

5,676

5,672

5,601

6,001

5,222

5,816

71,171

78,572

Prison to Court

4,009

4,213

4,255

3,742

4,286

3,880

3,794

3,994

3,422

3,583

3,603

4,093

46,874

50,848

68

52

68

74

72

52

55

68

52

42

46

48

697

867

273

285

286

283

331

317

226

279

204

267

295

381

3,427

3,774

10,420

11,304

10,821

10,049

11,415

9,720

9,751

10,013

9,279

9,893

9,166

2,052

2,040

2,131

1,916

2,252

2,261

2,030

1,988

1,387

1,714

1,777

12,472

13,344

12,952

11,965

13,667

11,981

11,781

12,001

10,666

11,607

10,943

1,371

1,511

1,591

1,433

1,540

1,453

1,398

1,520

1,465

1,406

1,310

13,843

14,855

14,543

13,398

15,207

13,434

13,179

13,521

12,131

13,013

12,253

% delivered to court
on time

92%

89%

91%

91%

89%

89%

90%

89%

90%

92%

91%

92%

90%

86%

Number of Prisoners
Unlawfully at Large

0

0

1

0

0

0

0

0

1

0

0

0

2

10

Mental Health Hospitals
to Court
Court Others
Total Core Services
Total External Services
Total Core Volume
Total Non Core Volume
Total Movements

APPENDIX 9

Mar-17 2016-17 2015-16
Total
Total

10,338 122,169 134,061
2,040

23,588

26,042

12,378 145,757 160,103
1,512

17,510

17,381

13,890 136,267 177,484

83

NOTES

NOTES

SCOTTISH PRISON SERVICE
ANNUAL REPORT & ACCOUNTS 2016-2017

NOTES

NOTES

SCOTTISH PRISON SERVICE
ANNUAL REPORT & ACCOUNTS
2016-2017

Scottish Prison Service
Headquarters
Calton House
5 Redheughs Rigg
South Gyle
Edinburgh
EH12 9HW

Presented to the Scottish Parliament in
pursuance of the Prisons (Scotland) Act 1989
Laid before the Scottish Parliament
by the Scottish Ministers
July 2017
SG/2017/104

© Crown copyright 2017
ISBN: 978-1-78851-001-1
This document is also available from our website
www.sps.gov.uk
Published on behalf of the Scottish Prison Service by
APS Group, June 2017

